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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM")
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that
it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness

and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the

whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’' STATEMENT
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Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively known as the “Group”), it is my great pleasure to report to
the shareholders the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group mainly focused on
developing and marketing of the patented server based technology
and the provision of communications software platform and software
related services with primary focus in the government industry sector and
enterprises in Hong Kong. Our Group also engaged in education projects
and the e-learning business platform in the education sectors. Moreover,
in the year 2015, we expanded the business into the mainland China
focusing on the custom-made software development services including
urban grid management system and internet marketing. And from the
fourth quarter of 2015 onwards, our Group has diversified the business
into the money lending which aims to broaden the income sources of the
Group.

PROSPECT

The increasing importance of the IT services from developing the software
to its maintenance and therefore increase the software spending in Hong
Kong and the PRC market. Enterprises are trying to enhance the efficiency
and the whole customer experience of both business to business and
business to customer by investing in customer relationship management
and supply chain software. Our Group will continue to develop and
upgrade our products in the existing market.

Meanwhile, our Group intends to develop the different IT sections,
including the development and operation of mobile games and
applications, in order to diversify the business and broaden the income
sources to improve the performance and maximize the returns of
shareholders (the “Shareholders”) of the Company as a whole.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2015
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
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APPRECIATION &)

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to 5% AAZBRXEZSEHESRORGE
give my sincere gratitude to my fellow Directors and all the staff who have ERELEEET  RABBEEEH  IHEK
contributed their time, efforts and supports to revive the Group's business EEESHIEE -

operations.

Chan Wai Kit BIF/E

Deputy Chairman BRAZ 4

23 March 2016 —ZE-RF=ZAZ+=H




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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RESULTS

During the year under review, the Group recorded a total turnover from
continuing operations of approximately HK$41,268,000, as compared
to that of approximately HK$21,412,000 for the same financial period
in 2014. The increase in turnover was mainly due to the expansion of
business after completion of acquisition of Native Hope Limited and its
subsidiaries (together, “NH Group”) in December 2014. Loss attributable
to owners of the Company amounted to approximately HK$20,131,000
as compared with that of approximately HK$1,978,000 in 2014. The
loss was mainly attributable to, among other things, the increase in
the administrative expenses, including the staff costs, the legal and
professional fees and the impairment loss on intangible assets for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group engaged in
(i) developing and marketing of the patented server based technology
and the provision of communications software platform and software
related services with primary focus in the government industry sector;
(ii) the provision of website development, education and communications
software platform which focuses on the development of syllabus and
contents for Chinese Language teaching and learning in primary and
secondary schools and enterprises; (iii) the custom-made software
development services including urban grid management system, internet
marketing and other projects; and (iv) money lending business.

Software Platform

Having completed the acquisition of the entire equity interests in KanHan
Educational Services Limited in June 2014 and Native Hope Limited in
December 2014, the Group has established a strong corporate position in
the software platform business.

The segment turnover and loss for the year amounted approximately
HK$39,886,000 and HK$6,327,000 (2014: turnover of approximately
HK$21,412,000 and profit of approximately HK$2,468,000). Keep up
with the ever-changing IT environment, the Group closely monitors the IT
trend and continuously upgrades its products.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Money Lending Business

The Company has tried to seek for other investment opportunities in
order to broaden the income sources. On 22 October 2015, the Group
commenced its financing business (the “Money Lending Business”)
through Aurum Pacific Finance Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, which was granted a money lenders licence
by the licensing court in Hong Kong pursuant to the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Group adopted the money lending policy and procedure manual
which provide guidelines on the handling and/or monitoring of money
lending procedures according to the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter
163 of the Laws of the Hong Kong). The Money Lending Business made
positive progress in its development and became one of the sources for
the Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2015. On 22 October
2015, Aurum Pacific Finance Limited entered into a loan agreement with
the Honghu Capital Co. Ltd (the “Borrower”) pursuant to which Aurum
Pacific Finance Limited has agreed to grant a loan of HK$35 million to the
Borrower for a term of 12 months with an interest rate of 10% per annum
and payable in arrears on the last day of each 6-month period from 22
October 2015. The loan is secured by a personal guarantee from the sole
shareholder of the Borrower. The segment profit and its interest income
for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to approximately
HK$151,000 and HK$1,382,000 respectively. The outstanding principal
amount of loan receivables as at 31 December 2015 was approximately
HK$111,800,000. In addition, the Group has not recorded any doubtful
or bad debt in all its money lending activities during the year ended 31
December 2015.

We intend to continue taking efforts in developing and upgrading our
products and services with a generic growth of the business in order
to broaden our income sources. The Group will continue to deploy
appropriate operation strategies to meet the challenges posted by the
competitive market to improve the performance and maximize the returns
of shareholders as a whole.

Financial Resource and Liquidity

The Group's business operations and investments are in Hong Kong and
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). At 31 December 2015, the
Group had cash and bank balances of approximately HK$38,725,000 (31
December 2014: HK$21,139,000). Most of the cash and bank balances
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United States
dollar. The Group will closely monitor exchange rate movement and will
take appropriate activities to reduce the exchange risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2015, total assets of the Group were approximately
HK$273,819,000 (31 December 2014: HK$168,323,000) whereas total
liabilities were approximately HK$38,252,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$40,355,000). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total
liabilities over total assets, was 14.0% (31 December 2014: 24.0%) and
the current ratio, calculated as current assets over current liabilities,
was 9.4 (31 December 2014: 5.4). The Directors will continue to take
measures to further improve the liquidity and gearing position of the
Group.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s authorised share capital was
HK$40,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.004 each,
of which 5,040,000,000 ordinary shares were in issue and fully paid.

Share Subdivision and Bonus Issue

By an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting on
5 January 2015, every issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.02
each were subdivided into five new ordinary shares (“Subdivided
Shares”) of HK$0.004 each (the “Share Subdivision”). Following the
Share Subdivision which became effective on 6 January 2015, the
Company’s authorised share capital was HK$40,000,000 divided
into 10,000,000,000 Subdivided Shares of HK$0.004 each, of which
3,000,000,000 ordinary shares were in issue and fully paid. And also,
pursuant to the bonus issue made by the Company on 19 January 2015,
the Company issued 600,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.004 each on
the basis of one new ordinary share for every five existing Subdivided
Shares held (the “Bonus Issue”). Details of the Share Subdivision and
the Bonus Issue are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 5
December 2014, 5 January 2015 and 19 January 2015 and the Company’s
circular dated 17 December 2014.

Placing of new shares under general mandate

On 29 April 2015, the Company has completed a placing (the “First
Placing”) with the placing agent, One China Securities Limited, pursuant
to which 600,000,000 shares at the placing price of HK$0.10 per share
has been placed to not less than six placees who and whose ultimate
beneficial owners are independent third parties. The net proceeds from
the First Placing was approximately HK$58,909,000.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2015
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On 11 November 2015, the Company has completed another placing
(the “Second Placing”) with the placing agent, Kingston Securities
Limited, pursuant to which 840,000,000 shares at the placing price of
HK$0.10 per share has been placed to not less than six placees who and
whose ultimate beneficial owners are independent third parties. The net
proceeds from the Second Placing was approximately HK$81,606,000.

As at 31 December 2015, amounting to approximately HK$111,800,000
from the net proceeds of the First and Second Placing has been utilized
for the money lending business of the Group, and the remaining net
proceeds have been deposited in bank and have not been utilized and
will be applied as general working capital and future investments of the
Group.

Details of the First and Second Placing are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 20 April 2015 and 26 October 2015 respectively.

Share Consolidation

As at the date of this report, pursuant to the share consolidation (the
“Share Consolidation”), every 10 issued and unissued shares of HK$0.004
each were consolidated into 1 consolidated share (the “Consolidated
Share”) of HK$0.04 each. Following the Share Consolidation which has
become effective on 22 February 2016, the authorised share capital of the
Company are HK$40,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 Consolidated
Shares of HK$0.04 each, of which 504,000,000 Consolidated Shares are
in issue. Details of the Share Consolidation are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 8 January 2016 and 19 February 2016 and the
Company'’s circular dated 29 January 2016.

Increase in Authorised Share Capital

On 29 January 2016, an ordinary resolution relating to the authorised
share capital of the Company be increased from HK$40,000,000
divided into 1,000,000,000 Consolidated Shares of HK$0.04 each to
HK$120,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 Consolidated Shares
of HK$0.04 each by the creation of an additional 2,000,000,000
Consolidated Shares of the Company and such shares shall rank pari
passu with all existing shares of the Company was approved by the
shareholders of the Company in an extraordinary general meeting.

As at the date of this report, the authorised share capital of the Company
is HK$120,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.04 each.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure
The Directors consider that the Group had no material foreign exchange
exposure.

Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities
At 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any substantial pledge of
assets and contingent liabilities.

Material Acquisition, Disposal and Significant
Investment

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement dated on 7 June 2015 in
relation to the proposed acquisition of the entire equity interest in 3t
N EEWBEEHE AR 2 E] (Beijing iPole Smart City Network Technology
Company Limited), certain condition of the agreement have not been
fulfilled and no extension of the Long Stop Date (i.e. 7 October 2015) has
been agreed, the sales and purchase agreement has been automatically
terminated. Details of the termination is set out in the announcement of
the Company dated on 7 October 2015.

On 29 September, 2015, the Group has entered into a memorandum of
understanding (the “MOU") with an independent third party in relation
to a proposed acquisition of 51% of the issued share capital in the
target company which is principally engaged in the trading of electronic
products in Hong Kong. The MOU has been terminated. Details of the
termination is set out in the announcement of the Company dated on 1
December 2015.

On 20 January 2016, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
a vendor entered into a MOU in relation to a proposed acquisition
of a target company which is principally engaged in mobile games
development, operation and promotion in the PRC. Details of the MOU is
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 20 January 2016. The
proposed acquisition has not yet entered as at the date of this Report.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E L& o

On 9 March 2016, the Company and a purchaser who is a connected
person at the subsidiary level of the Company under the GEM Listing
Rules entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“SPA") in relation to a
proposed disposal of entire equity interest of NH Group (the “Disposal”).
As the Disposal is only a connected transaction between the Company
and a connected person at the subsidiary level on normal commercial
terms, given that (i) the Directors have approved the Disposal; and (ii) the
independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the terms of
the Disposal is fair and reasonable, the Disposal is on normal commercial
terms and in the interests of the Company and its Shareholders as
a whole, such connected transaction is exempted from the circular,
independent financial advice and Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Rule 20.99 of the GEM Listing Rules. NH Group is mainly involved in
the business of the provision of software platform. Details of the SPA are
set out in announcement of the Company dated 9 March 2016.

On 11 March 2016, the Company and a vendor entered into a MOU
in relation to a proposed acquisition of the target. The target group
is principally engaged in development, operation and publication of
mobile games and applications. Details of the MOU is set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 11 March 2016. The proposed
acquisition has not yet entered as at the date of this Report.

Apart from those disclosed in the sections headed “Material Acquisition,
Disposal and Significant Investment” in this Report and the section
headed “Non-adjusting events after the reporting period in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements, the Group did not have any other
material acquisition, disposal and significant investment during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Profit Guarantee Fulfilment

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated on 27 June 2014 in
respect of acquisition of the entire equity interest in KanHan Educational
Services Limited and its subsidiary (together, “KHE Group”), the profit
guarantee is granted to the Group that the audited consolidated profit
before taxation and any extraordinary or exceptional items of KHE Group
of not less than HK$1,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 has
been achieved.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated on 11 December
2014 in respect of acquisition of the entire equity interest in NH
Group, the profit guaranteed is granted to the Group that the audited
consolidated profit after taxation but before extraordinary or exceptional
items attributable to the owners of the Company of NH Group not less
than HK$10,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 has been
achieved.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had approximately 103 employees
(as at 31 December 2014: 120 employees) in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The staff costs (including directors’ remuneration) were approximately
HK$24,219,000 (2014: approximately HK$12,667,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2015. The Group’s remuneration policy is revised
periodically and determined by reference to market terms, company
performance, individual qualifications and performance, and in
accordance with the statutory requirements of the respective jurisdiction
where the employees are employed.

On 8 May 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting to adopt a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) whereby the Board may grant share options to employees,
directors, suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers or any person, at
its discretion, for the primary purpose to recognize and motivate their
contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme is valid for a period
of 10 years commencing from 8 May 2013. Details of the Share Option
Scheme were set out in the circular of the Company dated 27 March
2013.

At as 31 December 2015 and up to date of this Report, the Company had
no outstanding options under the Share Option Scheme. Details please
refer to the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in the Report of the
Directors in this Report.

Events after the Reporting Period
Details of events after the reporting period are set out in the note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company is committed to maintain corporate governance of high
standards and quality procedures. The Company has put in place
governance practices with emphasis on the quality of disclosure,
transparency and accountability to shareholders for the sake of
maximizing returns to shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix
15 of the rules (the “GEM Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the
year ended 31 December 2015 except the CG Code provision A2.1 and
A6.7.

Under the CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The Company does not have any officer with the title
of Chief Executive Officer (“CEOQ") since the resignation of the former
CEO, Mr. Mo Wai Hing, Lawrence of the Company on 8 October 2015.
Mr. Zhang Weijie, the chairman (the “Chairman”) of the Company and
Mr. Chan Wai Kit, the deputy Chairman of the Company, also assumes
the duties of the CEO during the year under review. The Board believes
that vesting the roles of chairman and chief executive officer in the same
individual provided the Group with strong and consistent leadership in
the development and execution of long-term business strategies.

Under the CG Code provision A.6.7, executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. Mr. Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence did not attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 7 May 2015 due to other work
commitments. The Company will strengthen its general meeting planning
process, by giving all directors sufficient time to arrange their work in
advance and providing any necessary support for their presence and
participation in the meeting, so as to facilitate all directors attending the
Company'’s future general meetings.

Below are the major corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company with specific reference to the CG Code.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the Company,
overseeing as well as the supervision of its business, approval of
strategic plans and monitoring the Company’s performance. The Board
delegates the day-to-day operations to the executive directors and senior
management, while reserving certain key matters for its approval.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprise seven Directors, of which
four are executive Directors, Mr. Chan Wai Kit, Mr. Hung Tat Chi Alan,
Mr. Mui Yuk Wah and Ms. Wong Chi Yan; and three are independent
non-executive Directors (the “INED(s)”), Mr. Lenug Man Chun, Mr.
Fok Kin Fung Eric and Dr. Lee Nim Wai. There is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship amongst the Directors. The
Directors’ biographical information is set out in pages 30 to 32 under the
section headed “Biographics of Directors and Senior Management”.

Throughout the year 2015 and up to date of this report, the Company
has complied with rule 5.05(1) and (2), of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for discharging
their duties as Directors in the best interests of the Company and that the
current board size is adequate for its present operations. Each Director
keeps abreast of his/her responsibility as the Director and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company.

Members of the Board met on a regular basis and on ad hoc basis
to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group. There were twenty board meetings held
during the year 2015.
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Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings held during the B EEHREERBITZEESEEREN
year:

Attendance/eligible to attend

RE/ EERERERE
Board meeting General meeting
EZge3 BRRAE

Executive Directors
HiTES
Mr. Zhang Weijie' 6/6 N/A 5 A
RIBEETA
Mr. Chan Wai Kit? 20/20 3/3
PR (2 £ 5 A2
Mr. Guo Keqin? 6/6 N/A i A
By bte ey
Ms. Wong Chi Yan#* 12/12 171
=EHEBL L
Mr. Wen Jialong® 4/5 2/2
BRI ST AES
Mr. Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence® 11/12 2/3
SELEPE
Mr. Zhang Xiaozheng’ 5/5 171
/MBS AT
Non-Executive Directors
FHITESE
Dr. Lan Hong Tsung, David?® 12/12 172
EREELs
Mr. Chan Tik Yuen?® 4/5 2/2
R e R 5 A=
Mr. Xu Zhigang'® 11 11
IREM e A
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYEHITES
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert" 14/15 171
EEHLCEAET
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau'? 17/20 2/3
BEHIRF A
Mr. Lam Wing Tai'3 4/6 N/A i A
MoKFRIEA
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth' 9/11 1/3
By v e
Mr. Chan Wai Fat'® 5/5 2/2
BRIZEE A
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Notes:

i Mr. Zhang Weijie has been appointed as an executive Director and Chairman on
16 October 2015 and resigned on 9 March 2016.

2. Mr. Chan Wai Kit has been appointed as a Co-Chairman on 7 May 2015 and he
has been re-designated from Co-Chairman to Chairman and Chairman to deputy
Chairman with effect from 8 October 2015 and 16 October 2015 respectively.

3. Mr. Guo Keqin has been appointed as an executive Director on 16 October 2015
and resigned on 9 March 2016.

4. Ms. Wong Chi Yan has been appointed as an executive Director on 27 May 2015
and resigned as a company secretary on 18 January 2016.

5. Mr. Wen Jialong resigned as an executive Director and Co-Chairman on 7 May
2015.

6. Mr. Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence resigned as an executive Director and chief executive
officer on 8 October 2015.

7. Mr. Zhang Xiaozheng has been appointed as an executive Director on 27 May
2015 and resigned on 16 October 2015.

8. Dr. Lan Hong Tsung, David has been appointed as an executive Director and Co-
Chairman on 6 March 2015 and resigned on 8 October 2015.

9. Mr. Chan Tik Yuen retired as a non-executive Director on 7 May 2015.

10. Mr. Xu Zhigang resigned as a non-executive Director on 6 March 2015.

11. Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert has been appointed as an independent non-executive

Director on 7 May 2015 and resigned on 2 March 2016.

12. Mr. Lam Wing Tai has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 16 October 2015 and resigned on 18 January 2016.

13. Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth resigned as an independent non-executive Director on
13 October 2015.

14. Mr. Chan Wai Fat retired as an independent non-executive Director on 7 May
2015.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring its
effectiveness in all aspects of its role for setting its agenda and taking
into account any matters proposed by other directors for inclusion in the
agenda and the day-to-day management of the Group’s business.

Mr. Wen Jialong (“Mr. Wen"), has been appointed as the Chairman
and executive Director on 10 September 2014; and subsequently to the
appointment of Dr. Lan Hong Tsung, David (“Dr. Lan”) as the co-chairman
of the Company (the “Co-Chairman”) and non-executive Director on 6
March 2015, Mr. Wen and Dr. Lan act jointly as Co-Chairman thereafter.
After the resignation of Mr. Wen, Mr. Chan Wai Kit (“Mr. Chan”) has
been appointed as the Co-Chairman and subsequent became a sole
Chairman from 8 October 2015 to 15 October 2015 after the resignation
of Dr. Lan on 8 October 2015. Mr. Zhang Weijie has been appointed as an
executive Director and Chairman while Mr. Chan has been re-designated
as a deputy Chairman on 16 October 2015. On 9 March 2016, Mr. Zhang
Weijie resigned as an executive Director and Chairman.
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The Company does not have CEO after the resignation of Mr. Mo Wai
Ming, Lawrence on 8 October 2015. The Chairman/deputy Chairman
temporarily took up the role as CEO of the Company for a transitional
period with a view to identifying a suitable candidate.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors (“NED(s)")
should be appointed for specific terms, subject to re-election.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied at all times with rule 5.05A of the GEM Listing
Rules that at least three INEDs sit in the Board (more than half of the
Board members) and at least one of them has appropriate professional
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each INED has made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
INEDs meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, all the NEDs and INEDs have
entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial term of
three years, unless terminated by not less than one month’s notice in
writing served by either party on the other. The CG Code provision A.4.1
has been complied.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is entrusted with the duty to put in place a proper corporate
governance structure of the Company. It is primarily responsible for
setting directions, formulating strategies, monitoring performance and
managing the risks of the Group. Under the Board, there are currently
three committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective
terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising certain functions
of the senior management. Nomination Committee assists the Board
in nominating candidates for directorship, reviewing the size and
composition of the Board and making recommendation to the Board on
appointment of directors. Each of the Committees is established with
defined written terms of reference which are available on the Company’s
website and the GEM website.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Group’s policy and structure
for remuneration of Directors and senior management and determining
the specific remuneration packages of Directors and senior management
of the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Directors is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the market terms, individual
experience, duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to Directors by the Company
and its subsidiaries in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and its subsidiaries. The amounts paid to each Director
for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other than
the Directors) whose particulars are contained in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report
for the year by band is set out as follows:

FMEES
FHZEESARRAEEANESREREE
B2RMBAREBAESERETA - LE
RANTEERBRERE L ABHH -

R

%%Z TMBRIEFNEZEEERMHIE
CEAKE BEMEERER -

EEFMERARRALENBRARRARAR
HNBRRAZEREE MEFERZIMNR -
BE_ZT-AF+T-_A=+—RHLFERZE
EXNZHEA - BREEMBHRRMEEI0 -

RIBOEXERTAEBNSG  NFESRER
ABZHBENAFREERSREEARM
- SREEA&(BZRIN)OEEHH
EBEFIINTX

Number of individuals

Remuneration band (in HK$) FeEE(BxT) AE
Nil to 1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 4
As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises RARERE  FHEESH =B LIFRTT
three INEDs and one executive Director, namely Mr. Leung Man Chun, %%&*%%ﬂﬁé%%ﬁﬁk BN RIRRXE
Dr. Lee Nim Wai, Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric and Mr. Chan Wai Kit. The %$ TomBetr  ERBELAENBERESL

Committee is chaired by Mr. Leung Man Chun.
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The Remuneration Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year. FTNEESeHAEBERLBITINEE - FHN
Three meetings were held during the financial year ended 31 December ZEEeRNEE_TE—RFE+_A=+—8BI18
2015. The attendance of each member is set out as follows: HEREANRITZREE - SHEZHEBERE
FEAT
Attendance/
eligible to attend
HERE,
EEREERE
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert (Chairman)’ 3/3
BEECxRE(FRE)
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth? 172
IR 5 A2
Mr. Chan Wai Fat? N/AZ i A
PRE 2 Sp A3
Mr. Lam Wing Tai* N/AZ 3 A
MKRE A
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau® 3/3
B BRAE AES
Executive Director
BITES
Mr. Chan Wai Kit 3/3
BRIZEES A&
Notes: Hiat -

1. Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert has been appointed as an independent non-executive 1. EECAER-T—RAFREALARERERB I
Director on 7 May 2015 and resigned on 2 March 2016. WITES  YR=_T—"F=A-HEfE-

2. Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth resigned as an independent non-executive Director on 2. FEREER T —AF+A+=BHEB IR
13 October 2015. TEE -

3. Mr. Chan Wai Fat re-tired as an independent non-executive Director on 7 May 3. BRIEFHAER-_ZT—RAFREA L AREBLIENIT

2015. B

4. Mr. Lam Wing Tai has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director 4. MKFEERZTE—RAF AT BRZERB L
on 16 October 2015 and resigned on 18 January 2016. FHMITES - WR-_T—"F—ATN\AEE-

5. Mr. Chui Kwong Kau resigned as an independent non-executive Director on 16 5. EHXRREER T —AF= A+ NBEEBMIER
March 2016. TE= -

Summary of works TR

During the year 2015, the Remuneration Committee reviewed RZE—HFE  FHZESERETMEE
the remuneration packages of the all the Directors and the senior GEEBELGE EH2BEERERER
management and made recommendations to the Board on the BzHMAS  UERRFEEZHITEETRIE
remuneration of the newly appointed executive Directors and non- HOTESZHFMRESSREEBER -
executive Directors in accordance with the Remuneration Committee’s

written terms of reference.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for nominating potential
candidates for directorship, reviewing the nomination of directors and
making recommendations to the Board on such appointments.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises
three INEDs and one executive Director, namely Mr. Leung Man Chun,
Dr. Lee Nim Wai, Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric and Mr. Chan Wai Kit. The
Committee is chaired by the INED, Mr. Leung Man Chun.

The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year
for the review of the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board. In addition, the Nomination
Committee also meets as it is required to consider nomination related
matters. Three meetings were held during the financial year. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

REEEE
REZERAREATEHAES AL R
HEFREEE  IRABEARNEFRRM

RARERH  REZESH=RBIIFNT
EER—BUTESEKR KEDRIRRE
TECFTRRBREBLE ERBEAELNREMESL
£ BURTEERNEAERETZESE
BE o

REZBEMEASFRIBIT—REH IR
NERgZAE  AERAK(BERE - FE
KEERITE) o o - RABZBEGNTNFERE
TE8% UERRERAMEEFEE - RHZEER
AHRFEBIT=ZREZ - SHEZHFEN
o

Attendance/
eligible to attend
HERE
BERLERY
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYEHITES
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert (Chairman)’ 3/3
ECEE(FRE)
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth? 1/2
AR 5 A2
Mr. Chan Wai Fat? N/AZ i A
PR {2 3% S A3
Mr. Lam Wing Tai* N/ATE
MoK TR 5 A
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau® 3/3
VLIRS AS
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Chan Wai Kit 3/3
BRIZHE ST &
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Notes:

1. Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 7 May 2015 and resigned on 2 March 2016.

2. Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth resigned as an independent non-executive Director on
13 October 2015.

3. Mr. Chan Wai Fat retired as an independent non-executive Director on 7 May
2015.
4. Mr. Lam Wing Tai has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director

on 16 October 2015 and resigned on 18 January 2016.

5. Mr. Chui Kwong Kau resigned as an independent non-executive Director on 16
March 2016.

Summary of works

During the year 2015, the Nomination Committee reviewed the Board
diversity policy, the structure, size and composition of the Board and
made recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s strategy and also reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of the newly
appointed executive Directors and non-executive Directors in accordance
with the Nomination Committee’s written terms of reference.

Board Diversity Policy

The Group adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
on 1 September 2013. A summary of this policy, together with the
measurable objectives set for implementing this Policy, and the progress
made towards achieving those objectives are disclosed as below.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognized and embraced the benefits of having a diverse
Board to the quality of its performance. The Board Diversity Policy aimed
to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a numbers
of measurable aspects including gender, age, ethnicity, knowledge and
length of services. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regards for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Mt
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Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of services. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Implementation and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board’s composition under
diversified perspectives, and monitored the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy annually.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises three
INEDs and one executive Director, and thereby to promote critical review
and control of the management process. The Board is also characterised
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of age, length of
services, professional background and skills.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved the Board
Diversity Policy.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is responsible to evaluate the overall effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management frameworks, to review the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and other
financial reporting matters and ensure the completeness, accuracy and
fairness of the financial statements, to monitor compliance with statutory
and listing requirements and to oversee the relationship with the external
auditors.

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual
reports before submission to the Board. At least one member has an
appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Audit Committee focuses not only on the
impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices but also on
the compliance with accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules and the
legal requirements in the review of the Company’s quarterly, interim and
annual reports.

Senior representatives of the external auditor, executive Directors and
senior executives are invited to attend the meetings, if required. Each of
the Audit Committee members has unrestricted access to the Group's
external auditor and the management.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely Mr. Leung Man Chun, Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric and Dr. Lee Nim Wai.
The Audit Committee is chaired by the Mr. Leung Man Chun.

The Audit Committee is scheduled to meet at least four times a year. Five
meetings were held during the financial year. The attendance of each
member is set out as follows:

RARERH  BERZE SR =RBILIFNT

BEERER REDBIARXELEYE EREEL
ERESBREE - RNEEEETIEZZES
Es

BERLZECHEEFRIEITNREGH - N

ﬁiEWE$ﬁ££@%°%WEZﬁﬁ%%
AT

Attendance/
eligible to attend
HERE
SERLERH
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert (Chairman)" 2/3
EECEE(FRE)
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth? 4/4
R R E?
Mr. Chan Wai Fat? 2/2
PR {2 B o 3
Mr. Lam Wing Tai* 171
MoK ZR P A
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau® 5/5
IR S
Notes: B -
1. Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert has been appointed as an independent non-executive 1. EXCAEN T AERALAEZRTABIIE

Director on 7 May 2015 and resigned on 2 March 2016.

2. Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth resigned as an independent non-executive Director on
13 October 2015.

3. Mr. Chan Wai Fat retired as an independent non-executive Director on 7 May
2015.
4. Mr. Lam Wing Tai has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director

on 16 October 2015 and resigned on 18 January 2016.

5. Mr. Chui Kwong Kau resigned as an independent non-executive Director on 16
March 2016.

Summary of works

During the year 2015, the Audit Committee reviewed the quarterly,
interim and annual results; made recommendations to the Board on the
terms of engagement of the external and internal auditors; and reviewed
the system of internal control and its other duties in accordance with the
Audit Committee’s written terms of reference.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the CG
Code and are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Under its amended terms of reference, dated 7 January 2016,
the Audit Committee is required, amongst other things, to oversee the
relationship with the external auditors, to review the Group’s preliminary
quarterly results, interim results and annual financial statements and
to monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the Group, to
review the scope, extent and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system, internal audit and risk management matters and to review the
Group’s financial and accounting policies.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out in the terms of reference equivalent to code provision D.3.1 of
the CG Code. During the year, the policies of the corporate governance of
the Company were reviewed by the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for each financial period to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company. In preparing the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2015, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statement of the Company is set
out in the section “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

External Auditor’'s Remuneration

The Company reviews the appointment of an external auditor on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of the
audit fee. The remuneration in respect of audit service and non-audit
service (for a potential acquisition) for the year ended 31 December
2015 provided by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited was HK$650,000 and
HK$110,000 respectively.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control systems. The internal control system includes safeguard of the
interest of shareholders and the Group’s assets. It has been an important
duty of the Board to conduct a review of internal control to ensure the
effectiveness and adequacy of the system of the Group annually or at any
time necessary. The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, as well as risk management
functions.

The Group has engaged ALE Corporate Services Limited as an
independent internal control review advisor to conduct the annual review
on the effectiveness of the internal control system. Review of the Group'’s
internal controls covering major operational, financial and compliance
controls, as well as risk management functions of different systems has
been performed on a systematic rotational basis on the risk assessments
of the operations and controls. No major issues on the internal control
system have been identified during the year ended 31 December 2015.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.
Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory
and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional
development for directors will be arranged at the expenses of the
Company where necessary. For the year 2015, each of the Directors
has participated in continuous professional development by attending
seminars and/or studying materials relevant to director’s duties and
responsibility. Their training records have been provided to the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, all Directors have received the HE_Z-—AF+T-_A=+T—RLFE E=F
following trainings: BERAFIRAT ¢

Training on corporate governance,
regulatory development and other
relevant topics
ThEER BEERRER

H it A B SR E R 35 5
Studying Attending
materials Seminar
mEEHR o A R
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Zhang Weijie' v -
SRIBHEE A&
Mr. Chan Wai Kit? v v
BRIZ A5 42
Mr. Guo Keqin? v -
E L
Ms. Wong Chi Yan* v 4
o G
Mr. Wen Jialong® 4 =
i S IR 5T A
Mr. Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence® v -
AR{E FR 5 A5
Mr. Zhang Xiaozheng’ 4 -
Ny
Non-Executive Directors
FHITES
Dr. Lan Hong Tsung, David?® 4 =
EBEELS
Mr. Chan Tik Yuen® v S
R 3 R 55 A2
Mr. Xu Zhigang'® v -
RAEM kA
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert" v -
BERCEE
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau'? v v
BB T
Mr. Lam Wing Tai'? v 4
MRKER A
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth' v v
M A
Mr. Chan Wai Fat'® v =

BRIBHFLS
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Notes:

Mr. Zhang Weijie has been appointed as an executive Director and Chairman on
16 October 2015 and resigned on 9 March 2016.

Mr. Chan Wai Kit has been appointed as a Co-Chairman on 7 May 2015 and he

has been re-designated from Co-Chairman to Chairman and Chairman to deputy
Chairman with effect from 8 October 2015 and 16 October 2015 respectively.

Mr. Guo Keqin has been appointed as an executive Director on 16 October 2015

and resigned on 9 March 2016.

Ms. Wong Chi Yan has been appointed as an executive Director on 27 May 2015
and resigned as a company secretary on 18 January 2016.

Mr. Wen lJialong resigned as an executive Director and Co-Chairman on 7 May
2015.

Mr. Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence resigned as an executive Director and chief executive
officer on 8 October 2015.

Mr. Zhang Xiaozheng has been appointed as an executive Director on 27 May
2015 and resigned on 16 October 2015.

Dr. Lan Hong Tsung, David has been appointed as an executive Director and Co-
Chairman on 6 March 2015 and resigned on 8 October 2015.

Mr. Chan Tik Yuen retired as a non-executive Director on 7 May 2015.

Mr. Xu Zhigang resigned as a non-executive Director on 6 March 2015.

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert has been appointed as an independent non-executive

Director on 7 May 2015 and resigned on 2 March 2016.

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau resigned as an independent non-executive Director on 16
March 2016.

Mr. Lam Wing Tai has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 16 October 2015 and resigned on 18 January 2016.

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth resigned as an independent non-executive Director on
13 October 2015.

Mr. Chan Wai Fat retired as an independent non-executive Director on 7 May
2015.

Mt

REHEAER-F-—AFT AT BERERNT
BERERE IR _Z—R"E=ZANLBERE-

REGEER _ZE-AFAALARZERBEE
B YRR —E-AF+ANBR_ZE-AF+
A+RNBEmBEEFEAEREIRERATFERERE
ESE

BRPEER_T-—AFTATNAERERRT
B YR-_FT-ARFE=ZANARHE -

EHERLZIR T -AFHA-+LBREZERH
TEERR-ZE—RF-ATN\BBERAWE -

BEBEER _Z-AFAALABRERITESER
BEEENE

REHEER-T-—AFTANBBERTEER
TR, -

RNEEER-_E-—AFAA-TLHEZREIRH
TEE  EBER-_ZT—AF+A+RBERE-

EREFIR - Z-—AF=ANABZERNTE
ERBEERE WHR_ZE—RF+ANBEHE -

FaREER - E-—AFARLHREIFNTE
=g

BREMEER -Z-—RAF=ANEBEFNTE
g

ESCEER S RFER A tARZETABIIE
WITES WHRZT—"FE=AZHEHTE -

EXRREER T —ARF=A T BREBLIEHR
TE=E-
MAFEERER—Z—RAF+ AT NBEZERBL
FMTES AR _T—RF—A+/\BFIE -

FERAER T —AFTAT=BEEEL IR
TE=S-

REZLENR _ZT-AFHALAREBELIFRNT
B=*-




28

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRELARE

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Mui Yuk Wah, is responsible to the Board
for ensuring that the Board procedures are followed and the Board
activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. He is also responsible
for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised of the relevant legislative,
regulatory and corporate governance developments relating to the Group
and facilitating the induction and professional development of directors.
During the year under review, Mr. Mui has attended relevant professional
seminars to update her skills and knowledge. He met the training
requirement set out in Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company had adopted a
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors on terms
no less exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company had also made
specific enquiry of all Directors and the Company was not aware of any
non-compliance with the required standard of dealings and its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities of the Directors that may arise out the corporate activities, which
has been complied with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS POLICY

During the year, the related party transactions, if any, are periodically
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company uses two-way communication channels to account to
shareholders and investors for the performance of the Company. All the
shareholders have received not less than 20 clear business days’ notice
of annual general meeting at which Directors are available to answer
guestions on the business. Extensive information about the Group’s
activities is provided in its annual report, interim report and quarterly
reports which are sent to shareholders and investors. The Company’s
announcements, press releases and publications are published and are
also available on the GEM website and on the Company’s website at
www.aurumpacific.com.hk.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, there has not been any change
in the Company’s constitutional documents. A consolidated version of
the Company’s constitutional documents is available on the Company’s
website and the GEM website.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company (the “Extraordinary
General Meeting”). The Extraordinary General Meeting shall also be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors
or the secretary for the purpose of requiring an Extraordinary
General Meeting to be called by the Directors for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Directors fail
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Send Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries of shareholders can be sent to the Company either by
email at administrator@aurumpacific.com.hk or by post to the
Company’s Hong Kong head office at 22/F., Hua Fu Commercial
Building, 111 Queen’s Road West, Hong Kong. Shareholders can
also make enquiries with the Board directly at the general meetings.

Make proposals at General Meetings

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
Shareholders” meeting

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”) (as amended from time to time), the Shareholders who
wish to move a resolution may by means of requisition convene
an extraordinary general meeting follow the procedures as set out
above.
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BIOGRAPHICS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAER[TE

As at date of report, the biographics of Directors and senior management
are set out as below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Wai Kit (“Mr. Chan”), aged 32, has been appointed as an
executive Director, authorised representative and compliance officer
of the Company since 13 October 2014 and a deputy Chairman with
effect from 16 October 2015. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Information
System and a Master Degree of Accounting from Curtin University of
Technology, Australia. Mr. Chan is currently the international business
development manager of Pearl Oriental Qil Limited (stock code: 632),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a director and
vice president of SZ Enterprise Union Finance Limited, a subsidiary of
Prosten Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 8026) and he is the
executive director, chairman, authorised representative and compliance
officer of PPS International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8201), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan is currently a company
secretary of Titanium Group Limited, a company quoted on OTC Bulletin
Board in the US. Mr. Chan has extensive experience in IT, accounting,
finance, corporate governance, strategic planning, as well as merger and
acquisition.

Mr. Hung Tat Chi Alan (“Mr. Hung"), aged 37, has been appointed
as executive Director with effect on 2 March 2016. Mr. Hung obtained
his Master Degree in Civil Engineering from the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology. He is specialized in commercializing recycled
products in the construction industry and in waste tires solution. Mr.
Hung has more than 10 years of experience in China and established
extensive network with government officials and executives, investors,
entrepreneurs, professionals and academics in Asia, America, Europe and
the Middle East. Mr. Hung has been the Deputy Secretary General of the
Preparatory Committee for the World Summit of Chinese Entrepreneurs
since 2005, and has been taking up senior positions in organizations of
different sectors for more than 8 years. Mr. Hung is currently an alternate
director of Evershine Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8022) which is
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Mui Yuk Wah (“Mr. Mui”), aged 32, has been appointed as an
executive Director and company secretary with effect on 23 February
2016. He obtained Bachelor Degree in Economics from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Mui has worked for international
accounting firms for 8 years, with extensive experience in financial
reporting, auditing, mergers and acquisitions and initial public offerings.
Mr. Mui is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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Ms. Wong Chi Yan (“Ms. Wong"), aged 34, has been appointed as
an executive Director with effect from 27 May 2015. She is currently
the authorised representative and was a company secretary from 29
April 2010 to 18 January 2016. Ms. Wong holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree in Accounting from Hong Kong Baptist University.
She is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. She has extensive experiences in auditing, accounting
and financing as well as merger and acquisition. Ms. Wong is also
the company secretary and authorized representative of U-RIGHT
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 627). She is an executive
director, the company secretary and the authorised representative of PPS
International Limited (stock code: 8201). She was also an independent
non-executive director of Co-Prospenity Holidays Limited (stock code:
707) during the period 6 October 2015 to 25 January 2016. She was
an independent non-executive director of Prosten Technology Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8026) during the period from 25 June 2015 to 8
October 2015.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Man Chun (“Mr. Leung”), aged 28, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 23 February
2016. He has been engaging in financial services sector for over 6 years,
along with ample experience in an international accounting firm and an
international bank. He currently serves as a corporate finance principal for
a professional firm. He obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Social Sciences
from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2009. Mr. Leung is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Fok Kin Fung Eric (“Mr. Fok"), aged 32, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director with effect from 2 March 2016.
Mr. Fok has over 10 years’' experience in financial advisory industry,
with ample experience in asset management and risk management.
Mr. Fok obtained a bachelor degree of banking and finance from the
University of London and currently serves as a senior financial advisor at
an international insurance corporation.

Dr. Lee Nim Wai (“Dr. Lee”), aged 63, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 16 March 2016.
Dr. Lee is a dental surgeon in Hong Kong with over 37 years in dental
practice, with special interest in cosmetic dentistry. Dr. Lee obtained the
Bachelor Degree from the University of Washington in 1975, and later on
the Doctoral Degree of Dental Medicine from the University of the East in
1979. Dr. Lee actively engages in charitable activities and he has been the
vice-chairman and a director of Yan Chai Hospital from 1991-1999. He
is the founder of Imperial Dental Group which provides premium dental
services both in Hong Kong and the Mainland China.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence (“Mr. Mo"), aged 56, was an executive
Director and the CEO from 31 December 2012 to 8 October 2015,
and currently the director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Mo founded his first company CompuFont Limited in 1989 to develop
Asian language technologies for display and printing, which were later
licensed by Microsoft for use in its nascent Chinese version of Windows
3.0 product for personal computers. CompuFont Limited was in 1991
acquired by a Taiwan based software technology company, Dynalab
Inc. which was engaged in the development and sales of solutions on
local language computing for Chinese, Japanese and Korean (CJK) for
electronic and internet publishing, where Mr. Mo continued his service
as the managing director of Hong Kong branch of Dynalab Inc. and
various management roles until 1999 when he left to found KanHan
Technologies Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr.
Mo is an expert in CJK language font technology for PC and professional
publishing market. Mr. Mo holds a degree in computer science from
the University of Toronto, Canada and has over 30 years experience in
technology development, selling and business startup in the information
technology industry and over 10 years experience in the development and
sales of solutions on local language computing for Asian languages and
for electronic and internet publishing.

Mr. Lai Huamin (“Mr. Lai"), aged 34, is the chairman of Shenzhen
Zhoufu Internet Technology Company Limited (“Zhoufu”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Lai is also the vice president of
the Guangdong Small Commodity Association (EBEE/NE@RIHE) and
the Shenzhen Small Commodity Association (EYIT/NERHE), as well
as the chairman and chief executive officer of Titanium Group Limited,
a company quoted on OTC Bulletin Board in the US. Mr. Lai has over 10
years of working experience in the aspects of IT, commercial properties
and financial management.

Mr. He Jiang Tao (“Mr. He"), aged 38, is the founder and chairman
of Zhoufu. Mr. He is also one of the initiators of the grid management
system and a member of Shenzhen Entrepreneur Association (&I
TEXRBE). He has extensive experience in establishing research and
development teams from scratch and now has the overall responsibility of
the strategic planning and development strategies of Zhoufu.

Mr. Mak Ka Ming (“Mr. Mak"”), aged 37, is the project director of
KanHan. He graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Bachelor
of Manufacturing Engineering. Mr. Mak joined KanHan in Oct 2013
having over 10 years' IT and Project Management experience, and now
responsible for product development and service delivery.
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The Directors hereby present their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year and a discussion on
the Group's future business development are provided in the Board of
Directors’ statement on pages 4 to 5 and the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 6 to 12. The principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages
6 to 12 and disclosed in the section headed “Financial risk management
and fair values of financial instruments” in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Important events affecting the Group is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 12 and disclosed in the section
headed “Non-adjusting events after the reporting period in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements since the end of the financial year under
review.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Five-Year Group Financial
Summary on page 140. The Group is committed to supporting the
environmental sustainability. The Group has complied with laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and adopt effective
measures to achieve efficient use of resources and energy saving. Green
initiatives and measures have been adopted in the Group’s operation.
Such initiatives include recycling of used papers and energy saving
measures.

The Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the operations of the Group. The Group recognizes
that our employees, customers and business partners are the keys to our
sustainable development. The Group is committed to establishing a close
and caring relationship with our employees, providing quality services to
our customers and enhancing cooperation with our business partners.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases from
continuing and discontinued operations attributable to the major
customers and suppliers respectively during the financial year under
review is as follows:

TREFRHER

EHAEEREEYREESRAEEES
T AT 2 5 4 R B AR LA S G R
BEKBHIMT -

Percentage of the Group’s total

EREEAEZES T
Sales Purchases
The largest customer BAEF 18%
Five largest customers in aggregate AAREF &R 45%
The largest supplier A ER 12%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate TAREEE AT 40%

During the year ended 31 December 2015, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (who to the knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group and the state of the Group’s and the Company’s
affairs for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 44 to 139.

The Board do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to owners of the Company was HK$172,227,000 (2014:
HK$89,563,000).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Mm% BERRKRE
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group REBYE BMEMBREZEHFBTHNEGEE
are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. W RT3 -
SHARE CAPITAL IR 2
Details of movements in the share capital during the financial year are set AMBEEZRAEEHFBERHNZETEHRE
out in note 26(a) to the consolidated financial statements. MizE26(a) °
DIRECTORS 5=
The changes of Directors during the financial year and up to the date of RAFRFEREEAREHRAZESEEM
this report are as follows: ™
Resigned/
Appointed on Retired on

=¥ BT RE

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence RMEBRLAE 31/12/2012 8/10/2015
Mr. Wen Jialong AR A 10/9/2014 7/5/2015
Mr. Chan Wai Kit PRIZGES A 13/10/2014 N/AT i PR
Mr. Zhang Xiaozheng oR/ NS A 27/5/2015 16/10/2015
Ms. Wong Chi Yan ELBELZ L 27/5/2015 N/A
Mr. Zhang Weijie SRIBHE ST 16/10/2015 9/3/2016
Mr. Guo Keqin IS )b 16/10/2015 9/3/2016
Ms. Lam Kit Yan MRB 2+ 18/1/2016 23/2/2016
Mr. Mui Yuk Wah WEELEE 23/2/2016 N/AT i PR
Mr. Hung Tat Chi, Alan AR A 2/3/2016 N/AZRiE B
Non-executive Directors EHITES

Mr. Chan Tik Yuen BeR 380 )R 5T A 26/2/2013 7/5/2015
Mr. Xu Zhigang BAERI% 4 10/9/2014 6/3/2015
Dr. Lan Hong Tsung, David EBEEL 6/3/2015 8/10/2015

Independent non-executive Directors B FHITES

Mr. Chan Wai Fat PRIZEE 5o 14/7/2008 7/5/2015
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth TEIESEE 8/3/2010 13/10/2015
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau B L 17/3/2010 16/3/2016
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert BECEE 7/5/2015 2/3/2016
Mr. Lam Wing Tai MKREAE 16/10/2015 18/1/2016
Mr. Zeng Shiquan BARTE 18/1/2016 23/2/2016
Mr. Leung Man Chun BB E 23/2/2016 N/AE
Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric EfREiE 23/2/2016 N/AT 3
Dr. Lee Nim Wai N e 16/3/2016 N/AT i B

BETFEEEERAA
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In accordance with Article 108(A), one-third of the Directors shall retire at
each annual general meeting from office by rotation. Further, according
to Article 112, any director appointed by the Directors to fill a casual
vacancy in the Company under that article shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-
election at the meeting.

In accordance with the Articles 112, Mr. Mui Yuk Wah, Mr. Hung Tat Chi,
Alan, Mr. Leung Man Chun, Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric and Dr. Lee Nim Wai
who are appointed as Directors to fill a casual vacancy of the Company,
shall be re-elected at the next general meeting.

Biographical details of the Directors are set in the section “Directors and
Senior Management Profiles” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ CONTRACTS

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re- election
at the AGM in accordance with the Articles and the GEM Listing Rules.

All the existing executive Directors has entered into service contract
with the Company nor appointed for a fixed term for the year ended 31
December 2015. Each of the INEDs has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years unless terminated by not less
than one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
normal statutory compensation.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"))
(i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (iii) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were
as follows:

EERFRITHRAERKRG - 8
FARORES 2BERKXR

RZE—RFE+ZA=1+—08 BERARQT
FETBRABRARRREBE EZE(EERE
FREEAIEH ([ FHRBEEG ) EXVE) 2
B - HERDSEST - #EA)REZES
MEE GBI EXVEETRESD HBAME AR A K
BRI P 2 M ms A B (B IEIRIE B A R E &0
ZEEWEERBAEEZERRAR) 3K
(NERERBEESF MAEKRMIEIEFERN
ZaMrR s RAR - i) REAIER LT
HRBIE5.46E5.67 (5 ME AR A R FT 2 4
wmEAB T

Long positions in the shares of the Company REQXTARB ZHFR
Approximate
Number of  percentage of
Name of Director Capacity shares held shareholding
BEsns &% FEROHE BOREEIL
Mr. Zhang Weijie Beneficial owner (Note) 438,400,000 (Note) 8.70%

SRIBGTEE BB ANET)

Note: Mr. Zhang Weijie has been appointed as an executive Director and Chairman on
16 October 2015 and resigned on 9 March 2016. Upon the Share Consolidation
becoming effective on 22 February 2016, the number of shares held by Mr. Zhang
Weijie changed to 43,840,000 representing 8.70% of the issued shares capital of
the Company.

(Hizz)

B REHEER-Z—RET AT NARZ T AT
EERIFERR-ZE—XR"E=ZANBEE - BRH
AHR-T—AE_A-+-B4ERE - RELE
EETHEE 2 IR0 2K B 2k 543,840,000 (FE R ARA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS WHO ARE REQUIRED TO DISCLOSE
THEIR INTERESTS

Substantial Shareholders

To the best knowledge of Directors, as at 31 December 2015, the
following persons, other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or who were expected to be directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group:

TERREEMARE
Emz At

FERR

BEFEHMAM R_B-—AF+-_A=+—
B TIAL(ESHARREIBTRARR
SRR RABRERR (D T BB RIBRE F R E &
BIZEXVERSE2 K33 BE R ISR M AN 2 A KB 32
PIREZHEIORR  RIRHBEEREEE
B RN EABER T EARASBEERNKE
RAZBRAEG EREZ EAEIRAEES%
A L2 HE

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of substantial shareholders Capacity shares  shareholding
TERRER LB 13 ROHBE BBOREBDL

(Note 1)

(KizE1)
Mr. Zhang Weijie Beneficial owner (Note 2) 438,400,000 (L) 8.70%
RIS A& BB ANHT2)
Notes: Miat -
1. The letter “L"” denotes the entity’s interests in the Shares. 1. [L] EZEENRGD 2= -
2. Mr. Zhang Weijie has been appointed as an executive Director and Chairman on 2. REGRAER-_Z—RAFT AT BEZER/NT

16 October 2015 and resigned on 9 March 2016. Upon the completion of Share
Consolidation on 22 February 2016, the number of shares held by Mr. Zhang
Weijie changed to 43,840,000 representing 8.70% of the issued shares capital of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of other
interests or short positions of any other person (other than the Directors
and chief executives and the substantial shareholders of the Company)
in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31
December 2015.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 8 May 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting to adopt a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) whereby the Board may grant share options to employees,
directors, suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers or any person, at
its discretion, for the primary purpose to recognize and motivate their
contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme is valid for a period
of 10 years commencing from 8 May 2013. Details of the Share Option
Scheme were set out in the circular of the Company dated 27 March 2013
and note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

The total number of share option that could be granted was 420,000,000
shares at par value of HK$0.004 each, representing approximately 10%
of the total issued shares of the Company on the date of passing the
resolution to refresh the Share Option Scheme limit at the annual general
meeting on 7 May 2015.

The Share Consolidation was approved by the shareholders of the
Company as an ordinary resolution at an extraordinary general meeting
held on 19 February 2016 and becoming effective on 22 February 2016.
As at the date of this report, 42,000,000 consolidated shares at par value
of HK$0.04 each, representing approximately 8.33% of the total issued
shares of the Company, can be issued under the Share Option Scheme.

For the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to date of this report, the
Company had no outstanding options under the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance to
which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party, in which the Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
under review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under Articles, or law of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five years is set out on page 140 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note 24
to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors and management and shareholders of the Company
(within the meaning of the GEM Listing Rules) has an interest in any
business which competes or may compete with the business in which the
Group is engaged.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the CG Code contained in Appendix 15
of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.
Details of the CG Code adopted by the Company are set out in the section
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report. The Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company has good corporate governance practices.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established audit committee with written terms of
reference. The primary duties of the audit committee are to review,
in draft form, the Company’s annual report and accounts, half-year
report, quarterly report and to provide advice and comments thereon
to the Board. The audit committee is also responsible for reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process and internal control of the
Group. The audit committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Leung
Man Chun, Dr. Lee Nim Wai and Mr. Fok Kiu Fung, Eric. Mr. Leung Man
Chun, is the chairman of the audit committee.

The audit committee has reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company and discussed with the Board the internal
controls and financial reporting matters, including a review of the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2015
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs a written confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Based on such confirmation, the Board considers all of the INEDs are
independent.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2015.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has complied with the public
float requirement under Rule 11.23 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There is no connected transactions during the year 2015.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to date of this report, there was or is,
any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of the
directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise)
or any of its subsidiaries (if made by the Company).

AUDITOR

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EVENTS AFTER END OF REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after end of reporting period are set out in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Wai Kit
Deputy Chairman

23 March 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHEREE

—>

BAKER TILLY
HONG KONG | Rt

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Aurum Pacific
(China) Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 44 to 139, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2015

BUREMBEE
HRFTEEEERARARRE
(REEHSIMA A FRL )

ARZEED (AT [ 3P ) EFEA DN E44
E1IRRABTEKSEARARATHEHREIER
ADREMBARIATHE [EE£E DNEGS
MBHmE  WEEMBRREENR-_F—1F
T-A=t—BNHEUBRABRE BEZ
BIEFEMNGEEGR SAaBREREME2E
Ek GaRREQEHRNGEARERE
T NREBETRRMBEREMMERESR
£t o

EENGEMBHRRAEKENE
£

BERAEFAARRBEEEGMAERMN
(BFEMBHREER) REBCRAEDD) K E
RERREAMBRER  USHEAMBRKRE
HEEMAFHRKR  REEERRREGE
MR BB AERIES] - AR S MR
RIFEARRGFRERMERNEARHRR

it o

BB N EE

HENEERRERMANBIHZEREMB
BRIFEER » WIRBEFEBLHTEEMNIRX
ERBERR®RE - BRI ZINARE B EE M
BE e BT ERARSHARTAEMEMBA

TAESAREREE-

BAEREBEEESAMASRMANO(EERE
) #EITER - RFERNERKEAFIETERR
& WREIRRITES  UWAEBEREMHE
BERED NMFEIEREERBRAL o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHEREE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015, and
of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 23 March 2016

Tong Wai Hang
Practising certificate number P06231
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE_-Z

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TAII/R)

—n sz e 3 o —IElIEETE

2015 2014
—E-HF T— &
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Mat THET FET
Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue WS 4 41,268 21,412
Cost of sales B EE Ak N (9,640) (5,807)
Gross profit ES 31,628 15,605
Other revenue H iz 6 258 833
Changes in fair value of consideration ERAHFEMRE
payable for business combination NEE S (1,345) (48)
Administrative expenses ITEF X (47,707) (11,526)
Research and development expenses e (5,079) (2,964)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMX (4,434) (2,967)
Loss from operations KBEE (26,679) (1,067)
Finance costs RbE A 7(@) (49) (193)
Loss before taxation PR AT ET1E 7 (26,728) (1,260)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisfife,(FAX%) 8 763 (735)
Loss for the year from SEKREBER
continuing operations B8 (25,965) (1,995)
Discontinued operation BRIEKEER
Loss for the year from discontinued BRIEREEBZFE
operation 18 9 - (160)
Loss for the year FEEE (25,965) (2,155)
Attributable to: IR AL FEf :
— owners of the Company . /NCIEZFS DN (20,131) (1,978)
- non-controlling interests — IR ER (5,834) (177)
(25,965) (2,155)
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
(Restated)
(e=35)
Loss per share BRER
From continuing and discontinued SENMORIEEEER
operations
— Basic and diluted —HEARREE 12 (4.88) (0.64)
From continuing operations SFBIREETS
— Basic and diluted —HEAR N EE 12 (4.88) (0.59)
From discontinued operation BRI
— Basic and diluted —EAR R #E 12 = (0.05)

The notes on pages 51 to 139 form part of the consolidated financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GerEmakEMEARER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—_T—HF+_-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA THI7R)

2015 2014
—E—AF ZET—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Loss for the year FEEE (25,965) (2,155)
Other comprehensive expense for the year HttFEZEBEX
Items that may be classified subsequently to HigrgenE=Emn2EA ¢
profit or loss:
- Exchange differences on translation of financial — BB INEEBT HHRR ZERL
statements of foreign operations, net of nil tax ZF - KR ERIE (6,951) (29)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEXEHMXERH (32,916) (2,184)
Attributable to: BAT AL FE4S :
— owners of the Company R N/NCIE 2= DN (26,478) (2,007)
— non-controlling interests — FEPE A (6,438) (177)
(32,916) (2,184)

The notes on pages 51 to 139 form part of the consolidated financial FESIE139EMMFARGE M BRE ZAK
statements. B e

RETREEERAA
F#2015

i‘ ~7




46

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B R AR R R R

At 31 December 2015 R-ZTE—FAE+=-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7t 71 7 )

2015 2014
ZE-IF ZE—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Biat FET FET
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEE 13 6,316 1,865
Properties under development BRERPYE 14 2,804 -
Intangible assets mEEE 15 13,065 33,478
Goodwill EES 16 90,510 95,783
Deferred tax assets FEEFIBE E 23(b) = 926
112,695 132,052
Current assets REEE
Inventories 78 37 38
Trade and other receivables JFE AT BR 3% 2 EL A e L 3k 17 9,101 15,094
Loans receivable EWE R 18 111,800 -
Interest receivables YL B 19 1,382 -
Current tax recoverable A] Y [B] BN B FR T8 23(a) 79 -
Cash and cash equivalents BEE&EkBREEEY 20 38,725 21,139
161,124 36,271
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables H B 21 2,481 1,923
Financial assistance from government BT B BRI B 22 325 196
Deferred income IEIEUY A 3,272 4,570
Consideration payable for business A MNEMNRE
combination 28(c) 9,879 -
Current tax liabilities BNEAFi B & (& 23(a) 1,174 =
17,131 6,689
Net current assets REEEFE 143,993 29,582
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERABER 256,688 161,634
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Financial assistance from government BT BUR B 22 46 487
Deferred tax liabilities BXERIBEE 23(b) 2,707 6,277
Consideration payable for business AN EMNRE
combination 28(c) 18,368 26,902
21,121 33,666
NET ASSETS BEESE 235,567 127,968

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2015




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR AR R R

At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—AE+=-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7531 7= )

2015 2014
—ZE—AfF —T—mF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M et FHET FHET
Capital and reserves EAXK

Share capital A& 26(a) 20,160 12,000
Reserves i 210,789 104,912

Total equity attributable to owners RKATBEEA
of the Company LR AR 230,949 116,912
Non-controlling interests VTR 2 4,618 11,056
TOTAL EQUITY ERAEE 235,567 127,968

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March EFepR T ARF-AZt=-HMAERKE

2016. iz -
Chan Wai Kit Wong Chi Yan
PR BEER
Director Director
EES S

The notes on pages 51 to 139 form part of the consolidated financial FES1R139E MM ARG A MK 2 HEK I

-

statements. g7 °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SERREZBB K

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HE-—T—HAF+ - A=+—HILEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7531 7= )

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRRER AR
Non-
Share Share Capital Capital  Exchange Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve surplus reserve losses Total interests Total

RE  ROEE EARE ERBR  EXRE  RHEE a5 FERER @
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAL TAR TAL TAr TAL TAr TAL TAL ThL
(note (note (note (note
2600)0)  26(0)i)  26(b)i)  26(b)v)

(Riz (st (Bt (st

2600)0)  26(0)i)  26()ii)  26(b)iv))
At 1 January 2014 RZE-mE-A-H 10,000 81,150 2,421 16,699 (74) (54,418) 55,784 - 55,784
Loss for the year FEER S S = = = (1,978) (1,978) (177) (2,155)

Exchange differences on translation & 5N T £HE R
of financial statements of foreign 7 EH =5 + BBk
operations, net of nil tax B = = = = (29 = (29 - (29)

Total comprehensive expense  FE2ANHLE

for the year - - - - (29) (1,978) (2,007) (177 (2,184)
Issue of shares (note 26(a)(iii)) ~ FR(HEAT
(tE26(a)i) 2,000 61,135 - - - - 63,135 = 63,135
Non-controlling interests arising on  EEAHEE L
business combination (note 28)  JEHRMRiER (fit3128) - - - - 5 = - 11,233 11,233
2,000 61,135 - - (29 (1,978) 61,128 11,056 72,184
At 31 December 2014 R-E-DmE
+-A=1+-H 12,000 142,285 2,421 16,699 (103) (56,396) 116,912 11,056 127,968
At 1 January 2015 R-E-1%-A-H 12,000 142,285 2,427 16,699 (103) (56,396) 116,912 11,056 127,968
Loss for the year FEFR - - - - - (0131)  (0131) (5834 (25965

Exchange differences on translation #E 5N EE/4EH%
of financial statements of foreign 2} =8 &M%
operations, net of nil tax ZHE S S S - (634) - (6347) (604 (6951)

Total comprehensive expense £ 2ERXEE

for the year - - - - (6,347) (20,131) (26,478) (6,438) (32,916)
Issue of shares (note 26(a)i)) e
(Bi5E26(a)i)) 8,160 132,355 - - - - 140,515 - 140,515
8,160 132,355 - - (6,347) (20,131) 114,037 (6,438) 107,599
At 31 December 2015 RZB-1E
+-A=1+-H 20,160 274,640 2,427 16,699 (6,450) (76,527) 230,949 4,618 235,567

The notes on pages 51 to 139 form part of the consolidated financial F51 21398 WM ARG A B8Rk 2 A0
statements. o e

N
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE—-Z A+ -A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T 71 7 )

2015 2014
—EB-1F —ET—NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hat FHET FHET
Operating activities BEEH
Loss before taxation: R Al ES 1S -
— From continuing operations —IFELEER (26,728) (1,260)
— From discontinued operation — BRI = (160)
Adjustments for: P
- Changes in fair value of consideration —¥BEHEMNRE
payable for business combinations N EEE 1,345 48
— Interest income from money lending —EEBFEWA 4 (1,382) -
— Bank interest income —IRITFEHA 6 (10) (95)
— Other loan interest income —HMAERFBEUWA 6 (184) =
— Other interest income —H M FSHA 6 = (734)
— Finance costs — BB KA 7(a) 49 193
— Amortisation of intangible assets — B EERH 7(c) 7,717 2,495
— Depreciation of property, plant and —E  BERRERTE
equipment 7(c) 756 383
— Impairment of intangible assets —EEEERE 7(c) 9,299 -
— Impairment of property, plant and —WE  BELRRERE
equipment 7(c) 214 -
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, —REWE - BE KRB
plant and equipment &8, () 7(c) 258 (1)
— Write-off of intangible assets —MEmEEEE 7(c) 3,786 -
— Write-off of property, plant and — MY - BB &EE
equipment 7(c) = 7
— Effect of foreign exchange rate —EXRE R FE
changes, net (388) (29)
Operating (loss)/profit before working &#EE LB Fa 2 KY
capital changes (F518), &7 (5,268) 847
Decrease in inventories FERL 1 43
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other JE Uit B 2R R L b pE U 3k
receivables A (3gan) 731 (4,167)
Increase in loans receivable FEYE FRIE (111,800) =
Increase in other payables Hoth [ < FAE hn 558 1,627
Decrease in deferred income BEEW AR D (1,298) (1,048)
Net cash used in operation SEARSTE (117,076) (2,698)
Income tax paid: BEARATEH
- Hong Kong Profit Tax paid —BENBEENER (244) =
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid —BNFRRESEMEH (209) =
Net cash used in operating activities & EZHFIRAHRLEEHE (117,529) (2,698)

Yy
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEeRTMNER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RE-F-EF+-A=+-ALFE
(ABTIIR)

2015 2014
—g-1EF _—T-QOF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hat FTET FAT
Investing activities REEH
Interest received EFILE 194 829
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  HEK
plant and equipment BABFTSRIE = 14
Payment for purchase of property, BEME  BER
plant and equipment BB RE (5.685) (1,607)
Additions to properties under development Z$E FR¥)Z 2 1E N (2,804) -
Expenditure on development projects FEIEE T (1.719) (2,144)
New loans to third parties ETE=FTHHER (6,038) (5,262)
Repayment of loans from third parties BEZ=HNER 11,300
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WM B AR 2
subsidiaries RembFE 28 = (63,648)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFTARSFE (4,752) (71,818)
Financing activities REES
Interest paid EFE (49) (4)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIR M PRIGERIE 26(a)(iii) 140,515 63,135
Repayment of financial assistance from (8% BT B BUR BY
government (312) (232)
Repayment of loans from a shareholder EE—ZREZER - (11,528)
New loans from a third party RE—BEZFHFER 3,000 -
Repayment of loans to a third party BET—RE=ZFTHNER (3,000) -
New bank loans FERITER = 1,000
Repayment of bank loans EERITER = (1,000)
Net cash generated from financing RETHRERSTH
activities 140,154 51,371
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReERkAEEEY
cash equivalents #whn, GRd)FE 17,873 (23,145)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January RA—A—HZRERESZEY 21,139 44,284
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREEH
changes (287) =
Cash and cash equivalents Rt+t=-—A=+—H2
at 31 December REeRREEEY 20 38,725 21,139
The notes on pages 51 to 139 form part of the consolidated financial FESIR139ENM T RAGA M B®WEK ZAKX
statements. & e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

COMPANY INFORMATION

Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted company with limited liability incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The Company has its registered office at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
the Cayman Islands, and its principal place of business at 22nd
Floor, Hua Fu Commercial Building, 111 Queen’s Road West, Hong
Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 33.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000") unless otherwise stated.
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") is the Company’s functional currency
and the Group's presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 3 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that contingent consideration payable for business
combination is stated at its fair value (see note 2(d)).

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 35.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment

losses (see note 2(j)(ii)).

(d) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or

loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values,

except that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12, Income taxes, and HKAS 19, Employee benefits,

respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to the
replacement by the Group of an acquiree’s share-based
payment awards are measured in accordance with

HKFRS 2, Share-based payment; and

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, Non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations, are measured

in accordance with that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group's
previously held interest in the acquire; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then its excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Non-controlling interests may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
measurement period (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
arising from a business combination for which the acquisition
date is before 1 July 2014 and that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement, or HKAS 37, Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration arising from a business
combination for which the acquisition date is on or after
1 July 2014 and that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value, with
the corresponding changes in fair value being recognised in
profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see note 2(d)) less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
arising on a business combination is allocated to each cash-
generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination
and is tested annually for impairment (see note 2(j)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2())(ii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements 3 to 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Computers and other equipment 3 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Properties under development

Properties under development are carried at lower of cost
and net realisable value. Costs including cost of land use
right, construction costs, professional fees and other direct
development expenditure that are directly attributable to the
construction or acquisition of the property are capitalised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(j)(ii)). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note
2(j)(ii)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and
brands is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised from the date when they
are available for use and their estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Development costs 3 years
Technical know-how 5 years
Programming codes 5 years
Online platforms 5 years
Software systems 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2015

2 FEEFBERE)

(h)

‘B EE(BERM)
WRESH L LR EEHHEREH
X oo fHEMSGBRER M EREE
AT BAEBBRHERRE
MEKAETIE  BIFBES X
EEFUNERE - BNz HEB
BEBAA BEBELTRAMEE
LBl 2 s % B R R EBERA (HE
) o BAbEERAN R KA R
FTEE S RORE BB 5 IR (R M 5E2()
(i) - EfbFEE X HRNHEE R
HRAEME -

AEEBENEMELEETRK
AR Rat #H (FRET AR AT A FH)
FORERRYIAR (RHEE2()i) - A
MELAHELMEIHTIRELS
RHERAZE o

ERERAAFHZELEESRE
TABESOREE AR I AFEMEA
B - UTERAERATBFHZEL
EEBEAHERE ALHEE X

EFTAT AR T

BRAA =%
BT &N hf
AR hEF
BLE¥a e
BHEER HEF

SEYBRIEY AR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETTAIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TESHBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(i) Leased assets (i) HEEE

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of

transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines

that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset

or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment

or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based

on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is

regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form

of a lease.

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in the profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TTAIR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TESIHBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(j) Impairment of assets () EERE
(i)  Impairment of financial assets (i) ZEEERE

REBERBRSEHRBA IR
PN B B 55 X R 51 B 2 &

Financial assets that are stated at cost or amortised
cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective evidence of BE UBERESFAEMEN
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes BEZBERE - RBEZE
observable data that comes to the attention of the BEREREAEEETEEIMN
Group about one or more of the following loss events: T—HESZEEESEHZHE

60

significant financial difficulty of the debtor or
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to
the borrower a concession that the lender would
not otherwise consider;

it becoming probable that the debtor or
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor or borrower; or

observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a portfolio of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with
the individual financial assets in the portfolio,
including:

(1) adverse changes in the payment status of
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(2) national or local economic conditions that (2) HERBEHERX

correlate with defaults on the assets in the 15 0 £ AE B &Y

portfolio. K K E b A IR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()]

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial assets share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss
shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTEIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(j)) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and
intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()]

Impairment of assets (Continued)
Impairment of other assets (Continued)

(ii)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measureable) or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

V)

Inventories
Inventories, which represent merchandises for resale, are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Loans receivable

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of loans receivable
is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment (see note 2(j)

().
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Interest receivables

(n)

(o)

(p)

Interest receivables are interests derived from loans granted
to borrowers in the ordinary course of business. If collection
of interest receivables is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Interest receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment (see note 2(j)

().

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(j)(i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

(r)

(s)

(t)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Financial assistance from government

The Innovation and Technology Fund ("ITF”) of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region government has provided
financial assistance to the Group to assist in a specific product
development. The funding is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable to ITF when revenue is generated from the specific
product. The amount repaid, if any, will be in stages and
calculated with reference to the revenue generated and
received.

Deferred income

Deferred income represents contractual billings/amount due
in excess of recognised revenue resulting from services yet
to be rendered or in respect of the unexpired terms of the
relevant contracts/arrangements, or for which the applicable
revenue recognition criteria are not yet satisfied. Revenue
is recognised and deferred income is released to profit or
loss when the relevant services are rendered or on a time
proportion basis over the terms of the relevant contracts/
arrangements, or when the applicable revenue recognition
criteria are satisfied.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TTEIR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEESHHE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(u) Income tax (Continued) (u) FAB% (&)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and BNERFR TR A5 o4 IR IE R TR S SR DA 2
movements therein, are presented separately from each HEZE  HoHRIZ2IETEEME
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against B - ERARBXAEREAE
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred V2 58 I AT 8O R R LA S BN BR A 1B
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally ERHENBHEAE - MARKE U
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current TESMEME - R REER AR
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met: EMBES A T

. in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the - HAHBEEEREGEM
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a T ARASAEEERR
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability FREELE  AFAKER

simultaneously; or BENMBEERE 3%
= in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they - RMELEHREEERABED
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation T REETMEEENRE
authority on either: BEHFE— % E BT A
FiisfiBEmE BEE@EMEHR

Thm)
—  the same taxable entity; or = A — FE AR B BB
g,

= different taxable entities, which, in each future - TR EZEHR TR
period in which significant amounts of deferred Y- mzEEELEE
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled RREEEEE RFEER
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax EREREREAEX
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net RERER I & 2 Al A
basis or realise and settle simultaneously. WEIMHERERA - ZRF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

(w)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, and
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Provision of software platform includes:

(1) Sales of licensed software, which are recognised
on transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered to customers and titles has
been passed, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w) Revenue recognition (Continued)
Provision of software platform includes:
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

(2)

3

Software maintenance service income received or
receivable from customers when the maintenance
service contracts are entered into, which is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the maintenance service contract;

Software rental and subscription income from
software application and website development,
which are recognised when the relevant services
are rendered; and

Income from mobile application development,
website conversion, website development
deriving from providing software application
and electronic learning platform to customers,
which is recognised when services are rendered.
Revenue is also recognised in profit or loss in
respect of the deferred income over the term of
the service contract.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. When a loan and
interest receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the

carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the

estimated future cash flow discounted at the original

effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues

unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest

income on impaired loan and receivables are recognised

using the original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

(y)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising on the acquisition of foreign operations
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantive period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(2)

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single coordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with
a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs if the
operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation;
and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s) constituting
the discontinued operation.

(2)

EEa R (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(aa) Related parties
(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(2)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(3)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(4)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(6)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(CONTINUED)

EEa R (&)

(aa) Related parties (Continued) (aa) BEER (&)

(i) (Continued)

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(8) The entity, or any member of a group of which

iy (&)

@)

(8) ERHEAKBARZE

it is a part, provides key management personnel & 2 fE Bk B ARl A A

services to the Group or to the Group’s parent. KB AL B E QAR
HEBEBRABRY -
Close members of the family of a person are those family EfRI AT 2825 6 B

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group's most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

1ZERRS
REHFZEZBAATHIZZALT
TR IREKE -

(ab) Segment reporting (ab) 7&K E
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment BEDEREEMBRRARS S
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are DHEEZEEE  TRARAEE

TESRTHREEEBEHIRH A
FAREESEER LD EE
R WEHAE KRB 2 BEHR -

ERERZELD TG RBWEH
SEMMmMAE  RIFFEIHEE
BUGERSE  TEEGEUCE
mEREEE - BRPRHER
DHEMBERRBETTE - U RE
ERBUE - BRIZFERZEED

EBTTE R ZEERR TR o
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.

o Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits: Defined benefit
plans: Employee contributions

° Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

o Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

Except as described below, the adoption of the above amendments
does not have significant impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements:

The two cycles of annual improvements contain amendments to
nine standards with consequential amendments to other standards.
Among them, HKAS 24, Related party disclosures has been
amended to expand the definition of a “related party” to include
a management entity that provides key management personnel
services to the reporting entity, and to require the disclosure of the
amounts incurred for obtaining the key management personnel
services provided by the management entity. These amendments do
not have an impact on the Group's related party disclosures as the
Group does not obtain key management personnel services from
management entities.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see note 36).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

4 REVENUE 4 WH

Revenue represents the sales value of goods and services supplied
to customers from the provision of software platform and interest
income earned from the money lending business, as follows:

WA BRENGFaEETEENE
MR RGN EEERREERAEFE
AT

2015 2014
—B-TF —-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Continuing operations BEKEEL
Provision of software platform REHEES 39,886 21,412
Interest income from money lending WEEBEFBUA 1,382 =
41,268 21,412
5 SEGMENT REPORTING 5 ZoEEmE

AREBRE T EZERRABEHERR
ZENREEETHEZEDH -

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker, which are used to
make strategic decisions.

The Group has three (2014: two) reportable segments. The AEBAE=@E(-ZT—MNFE : WE) IR
segments are managed separately as each business offers different E£5E - AR EBIRETRE R KR

% TREBRBEBMER - o0 E
AER - EREAREE A RE D IR -
FTECBERRENESTHANNEED S
FE o AEERAHREHE 2 EBH o

products and services and requires different business strategies.
No operating segments identified by the chief operating decision-
maker have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments
of the Group. The following summary describes the operations in

each of the Group’s reportable segments: ™
Continuing operations BEREEL
- Software platform — developing and marketing of patented - BHFE-RAEREHENERSS

RERZ B REARAETF
a8 BHHABREE  BEER -
BLHE BEEHEEERES -

server based technology and the provision of communications
software platform, software development and sales, network
constructions, internet sales, internet marketing and domestic
trading.

- Money lending - provision of money lending business through — HE-BBRRARRBREAGH(E
BIEBIE 1638 )H T 2 BB FIEH
BEANEENTEA B ERERT -

a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company which is a money
lender licensed in Hong Kong under the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

RETREEERAA
F3%2015

yFo ey



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTYT)
5 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 5 e (E)
Discontinued operation EARIEREER
- Custom-made solutions — developing and implementing —  FIRMRERITRE-FBRNNTART

B R ERERERME AR
R BT 2 8T SR R R R IR 64 A

custom-made solutions which are specifically designed and
developed for the specific needs and requirements of a

particular customer and providing technical support services. FIERE -
(a) Business segment (a) XEBoDIB
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
REGEER BRLEEER
Software platform Money lending Custom-made solutions Total
G HE HES 5 ES @it
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Z2-Rf “T-mE ZB-3f CE-mF ZB-Rf CT-MF Z2-Rf CERMF
HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS$'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000
TR Thn ThR T TR Thn ThR AR
Revenue from exteral customers — RESMREF 2l 39886 21412 1,382 - - - M8 2141
Reportable segment (loss)profit ~ WREAH(EE) /% (6,327) 2,468 151 - - (160) ~ (6,176) 2,308
Amortisation of intangible assets  EF/AEEE 1717 2,495 - - - - 1717 2,495
Depreciation of property, % BRREE

plant and equipment e 428 332 - - - - 428 332
Impairment of intangible assets BVEEHE 9,299 - - - - - 9,299 -
Write-off of intangible assets HiHELAE 3,786 - - - - - 3,786 -
Income tax (credit)/expense R (E%) /By (193) 735 30 s - = (763) 735
Reportable segment assets IRENIEE 42,469 50903 113,382 - - - 155,851 50,903
Additions to non-current assets FRBEELN 4,774 31,445 - - - - 4,774 31,445
Reportable segment liabilities HRESHEE (8,716)  (12,736) (110) - - - (8,826)  (12,736)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 5 2w (E)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (b) AHRESEWE - B2 - BE
profit or loss, assets and liabilities REEZHER
2015 2014
—ET-HF —T—WF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Revenue Yz
Reportable segment revenue Bl 41,268 21,412
Segment revenue from discontinued BRI B EE TS 5 B
operation W zs - _
Consolidated revenue from continuing SIS IR VIR
operations g 41,268 21,412
Loss for the year FEER
Reportable segment (loss)/profit from AHREDMBAFEL S
continuing operations % (E1E)aF (6,176) 2,468
Segment loss from discontinued BRI EEB 2 HEEE
operation = (160)
Unallocated corporate income and ROMEEBARAE
expenses (19,789) (4,463)
Consolidated loss FaEE (25,965) (2,155)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets from AHESBAFRELE
continuing operations XB 2 EE 155,851 50,903
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEEEE 117,968 117,420
Consolidated total assets LAEEBERE 273,819 168,323
Liabilities =N
Reportable segment liabilities from AHREDMBAFEL S
continuing operations ES =L 8,826 12,736
Unallocated corporate liabilities RAOBEEEBE 29,426 27,619
Consolidated total liabilities e BEeRE 38,252 40,355
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

5

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,

(c)

profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The unallocated corporate income and expenses mainly
include changes in fair value of consideration payable for
business combination, staff costs and legal and professional
fees of head office. The unallocated corporate assets and
liabilities mainly include goodwill, prepayments and cash and
cash equivalents of head office and consideration payable
for business combination. This is the measure reported
to the chief operating decision-maker for the purposes of
performance assessment and resource allocation.

Geographical information and major customers
The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external
customers and (ii) the Group’s property, plant and equipment,
properties under development, intangible assets and
goodwill (“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on the
physical location of the assets, in case of property, plant
and equipment and properties under development, and the
location of the operation to which they are allocated, in case
of intangible assets and goodwill.

5

2 ERERE ()

(b) AIHRED MBS - B - BE

(c)

kEEZHKR(E)
ADECEWRARAXTEBRE
BEHENREATEEZS 8T
MARBRERZEZEREXE
e RDECFEERAFEAETE
BREEE GRFERIENTER
ReMRFEWAREBEHE
FHRME - M KRRFERERD
RRATRLERREZERTA -

HWEENRETERF
TEREBNEBOAEEKRBIRE
FrRERINAREZME - BE
K&t BRTYE  BREER
BE(EEFRBEE AELR
ZER - EEFRBDEEMELE
REEERMEECAYME  BE
RERERTVEMS) KR
LEMEMMHABTLEERBEM

Pk Pl

il

i}

Revenue from external customers  Specified non-current assets

RENREF 2K KEFRBRE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—g-HF —T-NF =¥-HE —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR AR A7 AR
Hong Kong B 18,428 21,397 31,640 33,500
Mainland China B A 22,840 15 81,055 97,626
41,268 21,412 112,695 131,126
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 5 9L (E)
(c) Geographical information and major customers (c) HWEEBRRETEEZF(E)
(Continued)
Revenue from major customers, each of whom accounted for RAFERFHN (S BEIEBIR
10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below: 2= 10%8 A ) #EFIT -
2015 2014
—ZE—HF —T-\mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Customer A ZEA 7,500 N/A*
Customer B = 5B 6,180 N/A#
Customer C BFEC N/A* 3,152
# The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more of the # RN S TME AAURZE10% B BA £ ©
total revenue.
6 OTHER REVENUE 6 Haykz
2015 2014
—Z—-EHF —ET—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE&xT FHET
Continuing operations BHEKEER
Bank interest income RITHI B UA 10 95
Other loan interest income HABEFF B A 184 =
Other interest income H A F) B - 734
Sundry income HTE I A 64 4
258 833
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

7 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BR B A &5 18

BBATEEE kR (ER) TFIEE

(a) Finance costs: (a) BB :
2015 2014
—E-hfF —T-lF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Continuing operations BHEKEEY
Interest expense on financial liabilities WIR A FETABTZ
not at fair value through profit or loss SRAGENSAE
— Interest on loans from a third party - BE=HERFE 49 -
— Imputed interest on interest-free loans — —ZRELEERZ
from a shareholder HEFE = 189
— Interest on bank loans — IRITERFE = 4
49 193

(b) Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration

(b) EITRA(BEFEESHE)

(note 10)): (KFEE10) -
2015 2014
—ZT-HF —ET—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Continuing operations BFEREETL
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERHMET 23,194 12,087
Contributions to defined contribution [EE R R 2R
retirement plan 1,025 580
24,219 12,667
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

7 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 7 BREAIEE(E)
(c) Other items: () HMEAR :
2015 2014
—E-hHF —T—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Continuing operations BEKEEL
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN & 650 526
Amortisation of intangible assets E G ERH 7,717 2,495
Depreciation of property, plant and M BB NERE
equipment e 756 383
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant HEWE - HERREH 2
and equipment BB (M) 258 (1)
Impairment losses on BB 18
— intangible assets - BEEE 9,299 =
— property, plant and equipment — M BEREHE 214 -
Operating lease charges: minimum lease &ML ZHE
payments KB IE
— property rentals — MEHEE 1,905 623
Write-off of intangible assets WiEELAE 3,786 -

Write-off of property, plant and equipment #is4¥% - BE & %4 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

8

INCOME TAX RELATING TO CONTINUING
OPERATIONS

8 REKEXBHEBHAES

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) #HZEBEZIFX2ZHIERE
profit or loss represents:
2015 2014
—E-RF —T-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Current tax - Hong Kong BHARiE - &S
Provision for the year (note 23(a)) REEZ R (HFE23(a)) 1,339 -
Current tax - the PRC BEASIE —
Under-provision in respect of prior years LA EE B ETE 209 -
Deferred tax (credit)/expense EERIE (KR) BxX
(note 23 (b)) (FFEE23(b))
Origination and reversal of temporary EAERBOEREETE
differences (3,231) 735
Write-down of deferred tax assets arising ST BB E A 2 BT
from tax losses BE 920 -
(2,311) 735
Actual tax (credit)/expense ERHEER) X (763) 735

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2015 is calculated
at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits for the year. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in 2014 as
the group companies comprising continuing operations have
either tax losses brought forward in excess of the assessable
profits for the year or do not have any estimated assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during the year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the respective tax jurisdictions.

No provision for Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT"”) of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") has been made for 2015
and 2014 as the subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC have
estimated tax losses for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

8 INCOME TAX RELATING TO CONTINUING 8 RHEREXEBNEBMEH
OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) (&)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) FEHEXESHEEREAR
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: REEE .
2015 2014
—®-AF —F-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before taxation from continuing Sl S N
operations [E518 (26,728) (1,260)

Notional tax credit on loss before taxation, B ATEEH L ERIIE
calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate 4 - & FHIsT EHEFE

of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) BE16.5%(ZF—M4F :
16.5%) (4,410) (207)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses NAT R 2 g & 244 252
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBBAZBBEE (51) (137)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not AR ARE ARG EE
recognised 2B R 5,189 810
Tax effect of temporary differences not ARG EZRE 2R
recognised =24 (503) 17
Under-provision in respect of prior years  LAFFEEETE 209 -
Write-down of deferred tax assets MsEEERIBEE 920 =
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries /& Q BT FEH R~ 52 (1,822) —
Others Hith (539) =
Actual tax (credit)/expense EEHE(ER) X (763) 735
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

9 LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED 9 BRIEREERCFEERE

OPERATION
On 1 January 2013, the directors abandoned the custom-made RZZE—=5—HA—B BEEWEHTE
solutions business, which was carried out by a wholly-owned ME QR EMRARAR( IRE)LE
subsidiary, Pearlica Technologies Limited (“PTL”). On 13 October RETRMAR T RER - R-ZZT—NE+ A
2014, the Group disposed of the entire equity interest in PTL to an T=0 AEER—E2BIE=FHER
independent third party. i) 2 EOARAE -
Loss and cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2014 from the BE-ZT-DNF+-A=+t—HLFE "
discontinued operation were as follows: ZERIEKEEB 2 FERRRA RIS W
T~
HK$'000
Fi&T
Revenue W =
Administrative expenses THRX (161)
Loss before taxation BTt R E 1R (161)
Income tax PRI T -
(161)
Gain on disposal of operation, net of nil tax HEEEER 2 e - &k
(note 29) THIE(MEE29) 1
Loss for the year from discontinued operation AAREEABMEES AL
attributable to owners of the Company REEBRZFERE (160)
Loss for the year from discontinued operation BRI R 2 FEEBE
includes: BIE
— Write-off of property, plant and equipment — WEEWE - BB KR =
Cash flows from discontinued operation DRLIREERCEERE
Operating activities RS (200)
Net cash outflows RERHFEHE (200)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTYTR)

10 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 10 EEM<
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of BEFE QARG E383(1)E « RFI (K
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of the Companies BEZNmER)HE25 REIER EH
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation HAFFRBEZESMESWT -

and the GEM Listing Rules are as follows:

Salaries, allowance and Retirement scheme
Directors' fees benefits in kind Discretionary bonuses contributions Total
Ezhd £4 2URENAE FifgiA JSE S it

15 0 W5 05 04 W5 014 W5 20H
“%-1fF CT-@E CB-B§ CE-ME CE-RE CR-0F C%-1F CSE BB ST
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000
TAr TEr TR TEr T A TR TR TEm TiEn

Executive directors YrEs
Chan Wai Kt REf - - [ 2 100 - 15 1 857 i)
Wong Chi Yan (note 1) EEB0H) - = 575 = 81 = 1 = 667 5
Thang Weijie (note 2 Rk - = yi] = % = 4 - bi -
Guo Kegin (note 2) HEE (k) - = 26 = 3 = 4 = pi3) 5
Lau Man Tak note 3) BN - - - - - - - - - -
Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence (note 4) TR - = 310 39 - = 14 17 3% 407
Wen Jizlong (note 5) BRI - - 0 300 100 - 1 5 530 305
Thang Xiaozheng (note 6) R E(Ho) - - Iy} - - - - - Iy} -
Yu Zhigang (note 7) R - - - 3 - - - - - 3
Non-executive directors
Chan Tik Yuen (note 5) - - 4 105 - - - - Y] 105
Lan Hong Tsung, David (note 8) - = 353 = - - = o 3 =
Xu Zhigang (note 7) - = 06 78 - = - = 66 18
Independent non-executive directors BUdnES
Chui Kwong Kau note 12) 3Rl 1 105 - s - = - - 1 105
Chui Chi Yun, Robert (note 9) ESC(HE9 8 = o - - s - - 8 A
Chan Wai Fat (note ) REKD) ) 120 - 2 - = - - ) 10
Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (note 10) kM) 9% 105 - = - = - = 9% 105
Lam Wing Tai note 11) HAE(HEN) 25 5 - - - - - = % =
359 30 3,09 1,002 39 - 5 U 3839 1,3%

RETREEERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

10 DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1.

12.

Appointed on 27 May 2015

Appointed on 16 October 2015 and resigned on 9 March 2016

Resigned on 10 September 2014

Resigned on 8 October 2015

Resigned on 7 May 2015

Appointed on 27 May 2015 and resigned on 16 October 2015

Appointed as executive director on 10 September 2014, re-designated as
non-executive director on 13 October 2014 and resigned on 6 March 2015

Appointed on 6 March 2015 and resigned on 8 October 2015

Appointed on 7 May 2015 and resigned on 2 March 2016

Resigned on 13 October 2015

Appointed on 16 October 2015 and resigned on 18 January 2016

Resigned on 16 March 2016

No directors waived any emoluments during the year (2014:
HK$Nil).

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2015

10 EEME(AE)

B3

1.

12.

RZZE—AFRAA-t+LBHESZMTE

S AFETATAAEZERR-F

—=—
;; ANBEHE

R-ZF—MFENA+BEE
R-Z-RF+ANBERE
R-ZE-RAFAALRAHE

—AFAAZ+tBEEZARRZ
£¢+H+AE%E

@ﬂ%

E-MENAATREZERNTE
CR-IE-HFE+A+ZRERERFE
TEERR-_ZT-RAF=ANEEHE

ﬁ%ﬂ%

RZE—RAF=-ARNABZERR=Z
—hF+ANBEE

R-ZTE—AFHAALtHEZERR=-Z
—NEZAZABT

R-ZE-RF+A+=AHE

RZZE-AFTATNARZERR=-ZT
—RE-ATN\BHEHE

RZB-RE=ZATRARE

FRESVERETANS (=T DO

8

BIT) e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

11 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 11 BRSHMA L

RASEREERFMALES =4
—EOEFEMBIEFTZHMEFER
M 10 E - B TME(ZF—WF : =
Z)ERMA LM EREENT

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2014:
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 10.
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining two
(2014: three) individuals are as follows:

2015 2014

—E-FF —T—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHxT

Salaries and other emoluments e MEMEe 852 1,500
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIE R 36 50
888 1,550

The emoluments of the remaining two (2014: three) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following band:

BIME(CT—F =R )&koHMMz
BEALZMENFATEE :

2015 2014

—E-RF —T—mF

No. of No. of

employees employees

EEAH BB AE

HK$Nil - HK$1,000,000 % 021,000,0007% 7T 2 3

RETREEERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

920

12 LOSS PER SHARE 12 BREE
(a) Basic loss per share (a) BREXEE
(i)  From continuing and discontinued operations () KEFEREKIFZAZE
Ey 3
The calculation is based on the loss for the EEREBEDZAR
year attributable to owners of the Company of AEBEANEEFEEREIE
HK$20,131,000 (2014: HK$1,978,000) and the 20,131,000 £t (—ZF — 1M
weighted average number of ordinary shares of & 1,978,000 7T) RE A
412,339,726 (2014 (restated): 309,863,014) in issue DRITEER ZMNETHE
during the year. 412,339,726 R (=T — W4
(Z%) : 309,863,014 %) &
(i) From continuing operations (i) KEFRFELEEF
The calculation is based on loss for the year from BRERNEBEDRARAHE
continuing operations attributable to owners of the BABRGRBREXEBZF
Company of HK$20,131,000 (2014: HK$1,818,000) [E#51820,131,0008 T(=F
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares —PO4F :1,818,000/87L) RF
of 412,339,726 (2014 (restated): 309,863,014) in issue NEETEBAR 2 NETY
during the year. #412,339,726 % (==& — Y
F(E51) : 309,863,014% )
ETHE o
(i) From discontinued operation (i) KE B EER
The calculation is based on loss for the year from GIRERE B T IZ AR [ %
the discontinued operation attributable to owners EABLERIEKEEKZ

of the Company of HK$Nil (2014: HK$160,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
412,339,726 (2014 (restated): 309,863,014) in issue
during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for 2015
and 2014 above has been adjusted retrospectively for the

share consolidation which were completed on 22 February

2016

(b)

(see note 32(b)).

Diluted loss per share

The diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014 is the same as the basic loss per share as there

were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED

Annual Report 2015
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FEBEZET(ZE—NH
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EETEBRZNEFEH
412,339,726 R (=T — U4
(&%) : 309,863,014 0% ) 5+

=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TTEIR)
13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% - BERRXRE
Computers
Leasehold Furniture and other Motor
improvements  and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
ER
HENELE REARKE Hithi e RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAL THL TAL TEL
Cost BA
At 1 January 2014 RZE—-MFE—A—H 36 76 817 - 929
Additions through business  EBEBAHAE
combinations (note 28) (B7E28) 4 48 161 £ 213
Additions NE 343 105 461 698 1,607
Disposals k= - - (295) = (295)
Write-off b6 (4) 3) - - (7)
At 31 December 2014and  RZZ-—NF+=-A=1+—H
1 January 2015 k=—F-RF—HF—H 379 226 1,144 698 2,447
Additions NE 5 12 273 5,395 5,685
Disposals HE 272) (47) = = (319)
Transfers B (61) 56 5 = -
Exchange adjustments NGRS - - @) - (7)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-RF+-A=1+—H 51 247 1,415 6,093 7,806
Accumulated depreciation Z:HFERKREE
and impairment
At 1 January 2014 RZZ—NF-A—H 20 19 442 - 481
Charge for the year KEEMG 18 33 297 35 383
Eliminated on disposals R SR S = (282) = (282)
At 31 December 2014 and  RZZE-NF+-f=1+—H
1 January 2015 k=—ZE-A%—A—H 38 52 457 35 582
Charge for the year KEEMG 53 70 393 240 756
Eliminated on disposals R ER 4§ (56) (5 - - (61)
Impairment loss REEE - - - 214 214
Exchange adjustments PN = = (1) = Q)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-RAF+-_A=1+—H 35 117 849 489 1,490
Carrying amount BEE
At 31 December 2015 RZE-—RFE+=ZR=+—H 16 130 566 5,604 6,316
At 31 December 2014 R-Z—ME+-A=1+—H 341 174 687 663 1,865
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

13

14

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Impairment loss

As at 31 December 2015, the directors assessed the recoverable
amount of a motor vehicle and as a result the carrying amount of
the motor vehicle was written down to its recoverable amount of
HK$310,000. An impairment loss of approximately HK$214,000
was recognised in “administrative expenses”. The estimate of
recoverable amount was based on the motor vehicle's fair value
less costs of disposal, by obtaining a formal quotation from a car
agent. The fair value on which the recoverable amount is based
on is categorised as Level 1 measurement. The motor vehicle is an
unallocated corporate asset for segment reporting purpose and
was disposed by the Group subsequent to the end of the reporting
period at HK$310,000.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The amount comprised prepaid lease payment for the land use
rights, professional fees, amortisation of prepaid lease payment
capitalised and other related fees and taxes with respect to the
development of the properties.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has not yet obtained the
final approval on the planning design scheme from the relevant
PRC government authority with respect to the properties under
development project. In the opinion of the directors, the carrying
amount is expected to be realised after twelve months from the end
of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2015, the leasehold land held under operating
lease included in the cost of properties under development is
situated in the PRC under medium-term lease.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TTEIR)
15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 B EE
Development Technical  Programming Online Software
costs know-how codes platforms systems Total
BRRA IR EAGE BLy4 BHES @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
Thn TEn TEn iR Thn Thn
Cost A
At 1 January 2014 RZE-ME-A-A 2,809 1,03 1,988 - - 5,820
Additions through business BREBAMAE
combinations (note 28) (MtE28) 3208 - 675 1,104 23,605 28612
Additions through internal development ~ FBAFERAE 2,144 - - - - 2,144
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 A=F—-ME+-A=+-A
k=%-1%-A-H 8,181 1,023 2,663 1,104 23,605 36,576
Additions through internal development  BBATEERE 1,719 - - - - 1,719
Write-off ki (3,786) - = S - (3,786)
Exchange adjustments ERHE - - - - (1,680) (1,680)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1§+-B=1-A 6,114 1,03 2,663 1,104 21,925 32,829
Accumulated amortisation and ZiBHRAR
impairment
At1 January 2014 RZE-mE-A-A = 205 398 = = 603
Charge for the year TEEHR 1516 205 466 114 194 2,495
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 R=E-ME+-A=1-H
k=F-1%-A-H 1,516 410 864 14 194 3,098
Charge for the year TEENR 2,038 205 532 21 4721 7,17
Impairment loss HEEE 1,299 - - - 8,000 9,299
Exchange adjustments AR = - - - (350) (350)
At 31 December 2015 RZF-RF+-A=1-R 4,853 615 1,39 335 12,565 19,764
Carrying amount HEfE
At 31 December 2015 RZB-RE+-A=1-A 1,261 408 1,267 769 9,360 13,065
At 31 December 2014 RZB-ME+-A=1-A 6,665 613 1,799 990 23411 33478
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 15 BREEE(H)

94

Development costs represent expenditure incurred for developing
electronic software products that has been recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(h) and are
internally generated.

All of the Group's technical know-how, programming codes, online
platforms and software systems were purchased as part of business
combinations in prior years.

Included in software systems is an amount of HK$8,896,000
(2014: HK$17,793,000) and HK$464,000 (2014: HK$5,168,000)
representing the carrying amount of the Urban Grid Management
System and the peer-to-peer (“P2P") Lending System acquired in
the NH Acquisition (see note 28(c)). They both have a remaining
amortisation period of 4.0 years (2014: 5.0 years) as at 31
December 2015.

The amortisation charges for the year are included in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. All of the intangible assets are used in the Group’s “software
platform” segment.

Impairment loss and write-off

On 1 October 2015, the management abandoned certain electronic
software development projects due to the fact that experienced
staffs were occupied by these development projects which
ultimately and adversely affected the deployments of other projects
and deteriorate the profits generated from the ongoing business.
As a result, the carrying amount of the development costs of
HK$3,786,000 was fully written off in “administrative expenses”.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 15 |EEE (&)

As at 31 December 2015, the management realised that
certain electronic software previously developed does not fit to
the requirements of the customers and does not generate as
much revenue as previously expected. The Group assessed the
recoverable amount of those electronic software and as a result
the carrying amount was written down to their recoverable
amount of HK$1,261,000. An impairment loss of HK$1,299,000
was recognised in “administrative expenses”. The estimates of
recoverable amount were based on the electronic software’s value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management. The cash
flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 5% (2014:
5%).

As at 31 December 2015, the management noticed that penetration
of the provision of the development services of the Urban Grid
Management System into the governmental market is not satisfied.
The provision of internet marketing of the P2P Lending System has
also been adversely affected by the enhancing standards of the PRC
regulatory requirements over such kind of online financial services,
the operating costs and profitability of the business generated by
the P2P Lending System has been adversely affected. The Group
assessed the recoverable amounts of these software systems and as
a result the carrying amount was written down to the recoverable
amount of HK$8,896,000 and HK$464,000 respectively. An
impairment loss of HK$4,298,000 and HK$3,702,000 respectively
was recognised in “administrative expenses”. The estimates of
recoverable amount were based on the software systems’ value-in-
use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by the management. The cash flows
are discounted using a pre-tax rate of 37.8% and 44.2% (2014:
34.9% and 34.9%).

R-_ZE—HE+_-_A=+—H0 BEER
AZARENETETFEHLRFARR
LR KRR 2 AT FRTE AR A9 UL zs © A
EEFEZEETEH 2T NE S -
A EBREERE A @ $%E1,261,000
PTT © §%1,299,0008 TR REE B [1T
B R - AIRESEIENRE T
e AEEEMAE - 255 EDIRE
EEEBHMEZMBBEMELZ2RERE
TERIFTH#EST - e RERHATEIEES%
(ZF—U%F : 5%)88 -

R-TB—FRE+-_A=+—0 EBER
ARTERCEREZARABERSE RELE
REFTS - BEEEH Y BEAEER
GNP REZSR LSRRG AZERES
METEREEVE  MUHIEERS
FREER 2 AR R E S m M IR R
BAYE - AEEFHEZERGERGE 2R
I El£%8 - BRI EEREES BIHRE R =
I & 588,896,000/ 7T & 464,000/ 7T °
% 4,298,000 % 7T & 3,702,000 7% 7T A R
BEEERTHRAXZ IR - kO &%
DEREHRENEREBERE-ET - %
EHENRBEEEEMEZ M HEBEME
B2 RS REBRIFTETT - RETERH
ATEEIR K 37.8% [ 44.2% ( — T — U4 ¢
34.9%34.9%)BhIR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

16 GOODWILL 16 BB
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cost and carrying amount AR EREE

At 1 January ®n—H—H 95,783 20,236

Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries W BB A RIFTEE £
(note 28 (d)) (BFFEE28(d)) - 75,547
Exchange adjustments HNGE FE 2 (5,273) =
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 90,510 95,783

Impairment test for cash-generating units

containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
("CGUs") identified according to country of operation and
operating segment as follows:

BERECHEELEMZRE
A
BESEEANKERBELEAERRKRE
BoMBRNZREELEM([REELSE
fz]) - FHEmT

2015 2014

—E-EF —E-F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FAET

Software platform — Hong Kong (“Unit A") #{FF & — &8 ([ BARIAL) 20,236 20,236
Software platform — Hong Kong (“Unit B”) & & — & ([ BEAIB]) 1,430 1,430
Software platform — the PRC (“Unit C")  #{FF & —hE([EfC ) 68,844 74,117
90,510 95,783

The directors have reviewed the carrying amount of goodwill in
accordance with HKAS 36.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

16 GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 16 BHE(H)

Impairment test for cash-generating units

containing goodwill (Continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to Unit A and Unit C is
significant in comparison with the total carrying amount of goodwill,
but the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to Unit B is not. The
following describes the key assumptions on which the management has
based its determination of Unit A’'s and Unit C's recoverable amounts.

Unit A

The recoverable amount of Unit A is determined based on value-
in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the management covering
a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth rate of
3.0% (2014: 3.0%). This growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growth rates for the market in which Unit A operates.
The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of 21.9%
(2014: 22.4%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects
specific risks relating to Unit A. Other key assumptions for the
value-in-use calculation relates to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which included budgeted sales, such estimation is based
on Unit A’s past performance and management'’s expectations
for the market development including the fluctuation in software
platform business in the current economic environment in Hong
Kong.

In the opinion of the directors, any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of
Unit A to exceed its recoverable amount.

Unit C

The recoverable amount of Unit C is determined based on value-in-
use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using an estimated weighted average growth rate of 3.0% (2014:
3.0%). This growth rates does not exceed the long-term average
growth rates for the market in which Unit C operates. The cash
flows are discounted using a discount rate of 35.4% (2014:
33.6%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific
risks relating to Unit C. Other key assumptions for the value-in-
use calculation relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which included budgeted sales, such estimation is based on Unit
C's past performance and management'’s expectation for the
market development including the fluctuation in software platform
business in the current economic environment in the PRC.

BABMEZREEL

bﬂnﬁ(mﬁ)
PEEEMAREMCHEE ZEEER
LhEERRAEREBEXN  EHRES
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Friig mBa R R a% o

B zRE

By A
iquTW@ﬁﬁhﬁ%FﬁZJM”
TE o ZEETRETEEIEZ ST
e ﬁ%@%ﬁi%ﬁmﬁﬁmiﬁm
T AFHEMNASRETE RGN
$#ﬁ*§f3o%(g —PO4 : 3.0%) ¥

c TR ZIRETBIBENMNAFTL
%%%ZE%$@%E$0E@%%EE
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o FEA AR EABRTIA - IR
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T AFENRESRENEABENE
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BhIR o FT{E A 2B IRE BBRTIAT - WAL
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HTT zWZEﬁﬂE;zfgié&if&ﬁ’fﬁﬂm)\//m
HEFH (BIEREHEERE) @ ZAsrERE
UCHAERBEREREBYHMSEENS
Z(EREARKREBERRFRGTEE
TEERE) ©

il

RETREEERAA
F3%2015

4




98

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

16

17

GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 16 HE(HE)
Impairment test for cash-generating units HEMECRESELENZRE
containing goodwill (Continued) A (&)
As at 31 December 2015, the recoverable amount of Unit C RZEBE—RAF+—A=+—H ' BudZ
calculated based on value-in-use exceeded carrying value by FRBEENT KOS ERLEERELD
approximately HK$5,028,000. 5,028,000/ A& ©
The budgeted sales growth rate within the five-year period is set at HEHANNBEEHERRERTF AFEFY
an average of 18% per annum. 18% -
Had Unit C’'s budgeted sales growth been 5.5% lower than MEMNCHTEEHENRKEIEBEEKE
management'’s estimates, after incorporating the consequential 55%  RAHEMARSETKE4E
effects of the change on the other variables used to measure the BB BT S % - BAICHEEEA
recoverable amount, the carrying amount of Unit C would be equal U 4B A AT U [6] 4 B o
to its recoverable amount. a h
Based on the assessment results, the directors are of the opinion ENT LR B2 ANETREAE
that there are no indications that the carrying amount of the TREERMEmMEDRE -
goodwill has to be impaired.
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 FEURBE SR B L At P Uk 2%
2015 2014
—Z—HF —EF—HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Trade receivables JE U AR K 6,344 8,869
Deposits and prepayments HENSSEEN 2,240 889
Loans receivable FEME R = 5,262
Other receivables H b U FX 517 74
9,101 15,094

All of the Group’s trade and other receivables, apart from certain
deposits of HK$309,000 (2014: HK$91,000), are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expenses within one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 BRERAR R EMERE(E)

(CONTINUED)

Included in the trade receivables of the Group as at 31 December
2014 was trade receivable from a related party, which is controlled
by Wen Jialong, a former executive director of the Company, of
HK$349,000. The trade receivable from the related party was
unsecured, interest-free and bore normal commercial terms of
repayment.

Loans receivable included in trade and other receivables as at 31
December 2014 represented:

- an amount due from an independent third party of
HK$4,000,000 which was unsecured, interest-bearing at 5%
per annum and fully repaid during 2015; plus

- an amount due from an independent third party of
HK$1,262,000 which was unsecured, interest-bearing at 2%
per month and fully repaid during 2015.

These loans receivable represented loans granted to the borrowers
prior to the commencement of money lending business in
2015. Loans receivable and interest receivables thereon after
the commencement of money lending business are disclosed in
separate lines of the consolidated statement of financial position
and in notes 18 and 19.

R-ZE—ME+-_A=+—8  K&H
CRERERBEREBES(BAR A
AIERITE BRRBEES) 2 BUERR
349,000/ 7T » R B BET 2 FEIBE R A
IR - B R AR R

RZE—ME+_A=+—BZiAEK
BRI EL M R R R B SR

— EWR—EIWILE = HFIE4,000,000
BT BERIEREERT - 1K5%F
FMEABRR -_E—RAFEANBHRE
2R

— EW—FBILE = HFTE1,262,000
B BEREAERR - 2% A
FEHBE RN ZE—AFERNESE
”@ °

ZERWEFREN T —AFREEEH
WRANR PR A ZER - REEKHBER
JE U B B FE IR B R R A BT I AR R B
STIERB RME18 194 E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 BRI R E W (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Ageing analysis (a) R
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis RS MEERE - BERSRE
of trade receivables, based on the invoice date and net of HRAHRAMGRBRBRZRR
allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows: DT
2015 2014
—E-RF —T-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Within 1 month DPR—1EA 2,949 4,037
More than 1 but less than 3 months BEEA—EAELR=EA 1,642 2,631
More than 3 but less than 6 months AR R =B A B DR E A 1,108 876
More than 6 but less than 12 months wERBENEABRLR T @A 532 1,116
Over 12 months TZEARLE 113 209
6,344 8,869
Trade receivables are normally due on presentation of billing FEWER R — MR Z AR B B E R
or within 30 days from the date of billing. Further details on HRFT30AREIE - REBEER
the Group'’s credit policy are set out in note 27(a). R BLHBENRWEE27()
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) FEUWERFRIE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded FEWBR R 2 BB EEF ARERRL
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied 8 o MEARER B (5 A U B % AR IE
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the SRR BRBEARAT - BE
impairment loss is written off against trade debtors directly BT 18 B ¥ 70 I M BR OIS (BB 5
(see note 2(j)(i)). 23)()) °
No impairment losses were recognised on trade receivables —E-RERZZE-MFHERE
for the year 2015 and 2014. W AR SRR (B S 18 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

17

PR WA R R e Lt R (4R

(c)

B EE
I & BB s KRR RIRE 2 B
R BREDITANT

2015 2014

—E-_FHf —EmE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Neither past due nor impaired 3 B sl Rl E 1,832 4,037

Less than 1 month past due #EL R 1E A 1,603 798

1 to 3 months past due BEI1 =3 A 1,567 2,383
More than 3 but less than 6 months A BRER A3 8 A e

past due L r6fE A 722 800
More than 6 but less than 12 months B HREE iR 6 (E A 18

past due R12{E A 507 740

More than 12 months past due o ER R iR 1218 A 113 111

4,512 4,832

6,344 8,869

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
trading record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

BE ISR B < RUGR BT HDR A
RAFGHELEPER

B8 B8 B E 2 FEUGR B E T 58
YEFPEH REREFPHEAKESR
RIFEERE - RIBEELR &
BERRBARZSERIELRE
BE RAREEKTILESAE
B - MaxFEBRIDEE QA EHRK
8] o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

18

19

LOANS RECEIVABLE

The Group’s loans receivable arise from the money lending business
of providing loans in Hong Kong by a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company.

Loans receivable, apart from a loan with principal amount of
HK$35,000,000 which is secured by personal guarantee from the
borrower’s guarantor, are unsecured. All of the loans receivable
is interest-bearing at 10% per annum and repayable on the date
falling on the expiry of twelve months after the dates of drawdown
or on demand in writing by the wholly-owned subsidiary.

As at 31 December 2015, all of the loans receivable is neither past
due nor impaired, and is wholly repayable within one year.

The credit quality of loans receivable that are neither past due nor
impaired has been assessed by reference to historical information
about counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties do not
have defaults in the past.

INTEREST RECEIVABLES

The Group's interest receivables arise from the money lending
business of providing loans in Hong Kong by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Interest receivables, apart from the interest receivable derived from
a loan with principal amount of HK$35,000,000 which is secured by
personal guarantee from the borrower’s guarantor, are unsecured.
All of the interest receivables is repayable on every six months from
the dates of drawdown of the principal or on demand in writing by
the wholly-owned subsidiary.

As at 31 December 2015, all of the interest receivables is neither
past due nor impaired, and is wholly repayable within one year.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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AEENEKRERARNRR2EKERA]
REBRBEERNRERBHELE

B BB KA Z EIR A A& 5835,000,000
BITIEEARRZ BRERI - BRER
BEER - TATEEBKERNFTE R
10% @ BERREFBEHERT_@AINEE
MEBARRLERE RERNRERE -

RZZB-—AF+-A=+—8 FEEK
SR RERRSEE AR —FRAE
BEE -

BERMYRENEREFNEEERE2E
BERR ST ENLIZBEEREFE -
RABERZ T BELERK

FE W R B

AEENRKNSARNRB2EHE R
REBRBERNREEBAEL -

FREfERRA ZERA BN £ 5E35,000,000
BITEEARRZ ERN BT S5 - &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

20

21

22

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 HERBREEEY
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFEE S 38,725 21,139
As at 31 December 2015, the cash and cash equivalents of RZE-—RAE+-_A=+—080 Kx&H
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to DARB(TARBDFEZReERS
HK$3,602,000 (2014: HK$4,540,000). The RMB is not freely Z£EWY 53,602,000 L (= —MF :
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s 4,540,000 7T) - AR TEEERRLBRE
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Hi & - A - REHEAM . INEE
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the RIGHIA R AEIE - SERNEETRRE
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through REB AFEBEREEITINE E 1 2 R1T
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. BARBHBABEME -
OTHER PAYABLES 21 HtsEAR
All other payables are expected to be settled or recognised as FrB H Mt fE A RIEEA G — F B (B ek I
income within one year or repayable on demand. RBERASIZEERK(EE -
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM 22 BATEA B B
GOVERNMENT
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—lF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Financial assistance from government BT B EE B 371 683
Amount due within 1 year shown under g : REIBEE NER
current liabilities —E R HER 2~ =h1E (325) (196)
Amount due for settlement after 1 year — B EEN ZRIE 46 487

In the opinion of the directors, an amount of approximately
HK$325,000 (2014: HK$196,000) will be repayable to ITF within
1 year by reference to the forecast revenue generated from the
specific products.

In the opinion of the directors, the carrying amount of financial
assistance from government approximates its fair value.

BEERA  BER —FANRAF REHEE
BB HE325,0008 T (-2 :
196,000/870) - EFEREREEMA
BEA 2 TERIKE -

$ERA  BRUHED 2 FABERLA
TR o

Yy

REFREEEGR AR
F#H2015 | i




104

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

23 DEFERRED TAX AND CURRENT TAX

BALANCES

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial

position represents:

23 EREHIR R NABE &R

(a) FAEMBMRBRK 2 ENEABIELR

2015 2014
—E-RfF —E—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHET

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FREBFNET 2 BE
for the year 1,339 -
Provisional Profits Tax paid BT EHFEH (244) =
1,095 =

Represented by: BTIEERTR

Current tax recoverable AT ol B ER % 18 (79) =
Current tax payable FETBNHAR B 1,174 =
1,095 =

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTYTR)
23 DEFERRED TAX AND CURRENT TAX 23 EEHRERENEABRELER(E)

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets/liabilities recognised (b) ERRZEZEHEELEE &E&
The component of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised RERE MR RBRERER BT
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the BEE/(AB)BHORFNEHZ
movements during the year are as follows: FIaT

Fair value
adjustment
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) EZEHREBEEE (AE) on intangible
arising from: EBEER: Tax losses assets Total
BREEZ
HIEEE AERE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHT
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—mWF—H—H 1,660 (397) 1,263
Addition through business FBREBEIIAE (H5E28)
combinations (note 28) 163 (6,042) (5,879)
(Charged)/credited to profit or  HiEzE(HB) A
loss (note 8(a)) (Mi7E8(a)) (897) 162 (735)
At 31 December 2014 and R-ZE—NE+_A=+—H
1 January 2015 rE—Z—-—HR%—H—H 926 (6,277) (5:351)
(Charged)/credited to profit or AERNR) FHA
loss (note 8(a)) (M3E8(a)) (926) 3,237 2,311
Exchange adjustments HNEE S EE - 333 333
At 31 December 2015 RZE-—FRF+A=+—H - (2,707) (2,707)

RETREEERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

23 DEFERRED TAX AND CURRENT TAX
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c) Deferred tax assets/liabilities not recognised

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has cumulative tax losses
of approximately HK$63,051,000 (2014: HK$33,155,000).
Of which, the Group has recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of these tax losses to the extent of approximately HK$
Nil (2014: HK$5,614,000). The Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of the remaining tax losses
of approximately HK$63,051,000 (2014: HK$27,541,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Other
temporary differences are not material.

The unrecognised tax losses will expire in the following years
ending 31 December:

23 EFERIE K ENEAR IR A5 6k ()

(c)

MARBRZELEHBEE, &fF
R-ZE—hFE+-_A=+—H K
& B 2 5+ % 7% B 18 4963,051,000
B (ZZT—MF : 33,155,000%
JT) o HA - REEBZIBEEERER
BERIBEEERATETL(ZE—N
#F 15,614,000 L) c HRAKRK
= A ROR AR - AEBE W ER
#763,051,000 8 L (ZF— W F :
27,541,000 7T ) By &8 T B 7% s 18
BRAMRCRIBEE - EMEE
MEBWIAEK -

AERZRBEEBEERTIEHE
TZR=+—HIEFERER:

2015 2014
—B-EHF —F %

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

2020 —E T 3,542 =
2019 —E-NF 2,599 1,376
2018 —E—-N\F 1,749 1,747
2017 T+t 1,411 1,502
2016 TE— X 153 166
2015 T A = 565
No expiry date I 48 i B R 53,597 22,185
63,051 27,541
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

24 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT 24 TEEHICRKEE

PLANS

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Prior to 1 June 2014, the cap of monthly relevant income was
HK$25,000. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of the state-sponsored retirement benefit scheme organised by the
relevant local government authority in the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute, based on a certain percentage of the basic
salary of its employees, to the retirement benefit scheme and has
no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement benefit scheme represents for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group did not
have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2015
and 2014 in respect of the retirement of its employees.

AREERBEE S LD E485F @ HI QTS
SETEEO AZ BB RERNEEN L
EENTEEER Y —ERFE B
El([aEestE]) - REeEA—E
BB X AEENERETORIKETE -
BiERESTE BEEREEESEER
EEHBWRANSKAEHZ  TmA
& AW A 30,0008 —F—0
FARA—AZA BeATARBRAR
25,0007 « TEIHFKANSFE -

AEETEHBLRNEE ST EAHT
TRTEREENBERKEBRAESE SN
KE - HBRARAREREZEARFEZ
ETADLRRKE IR - BRFEEHR
O BAFAERBRERRKRESNRIR
REFEE— S EE - BREBIRIKEF
AEERRRERX N 22 ERER

= o

ARBEERR  AEER_ZT—RAFK
—E-EFE+TZA=+—RH - XEEAE
MERERAZERIRAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 URALEECROBRS

108

TRANSACTIONS

On 8 May 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the
annual general meeting regarding the termination of the old share
option scheme which was adopted on 25 November 2003 (the “Old
Share Option Scheme”) and adopted a new share option scheme
(the “New Share Option Scheme”) whereby the board of directors
of the Company may, at its discretion, grant share options to the
eligible participants including any employees, directors, suppliers,
consultants, agents and advisers or any person in the sole discretion
of the board of directors for the primary purpose to recognise and
motivate their contributions to the Group.

Unless it is approved by shareholders in a general meeting of
the Company, the maximum number of shares available for
subscription under the New Share Option Scheme or any other
option scheme adopted by the Company is subject to:

(i)  The maximum number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options granted under the
New Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme
adopted by the Company must not exceed 30% of its issued
share capital from time to time; and

(i)  The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue at the date of the approval of the New Share Option
Scheme/at the date of passing the relevant resolution in
general meeting.

The maximum number of shares issuable under the options to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares in issue unless it is approved by shareholders in general
meeting of the Company.

Any grant of options under the New Share Option Scheme to
a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or any of their respective associates must be approved
by independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the proposed grantee of the options).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 URAEEZRORS (F)

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares in issue
and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
shares at the date of each grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in general
meeting of the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28
days from the date of the offer of the option. The consideration
for a grant of options by the Company is HK$1.00. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determined by the board of
directors.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by the board
of directors providing that the price shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares on the GEM as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of the
offer, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares on the GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

No share option under the Old Share Option Scheme or the New
Share Option Scheme was granted or outstanding during the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

REM+—EALM  AXREEERE
LB N TESHEESA 2 EHE
AR ZEERE - AR EITRG
0.1%RBEREREBHZEARMNI
MEH#)iB:B5,000,000E 7T @ HBERAK
NRIBEARS FEMREHE -

BRERLZSURRHBREEZE R Y
HEET28 B R - AR R R LB
ZHRER1.00E T - Kb B 2 1TEH
RREFEET °

BRETEBHERSETE  HTRE
TREXATESEOEZHER L AH(L
ARXZH)NBZE R RERABAE
MREIRRZKHE ¢ (NEZFEER LA
MR A AR S AP E B RERARK
MREIERZ FHRTE - R
& o

BE_T-AFR-F-MET-A=1+—
A L= R AR IR E RS A B Sk IB AR
HEST BT T 3 e R AT 50 2 RS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(@) Share capital

26 EXRFHE
(a) B#&
(i)  Authorised and issued share capital ) EEREEITRA
Number of
shares Amount
RHEE k-]
‘000 HK$'000
T THAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares TR
At 1 January 2014, RZE—mOFE—H—H "
31 December 2014 and —Z-WFE+-A=t—HK
1 January 2015 of —E-n¥-A-BAEKREE
HK$0.02 each 0,025 7T 7 B3 15 2,000,000 40,000
Share subdivision (note (ii)) B 17 53 4 (Bt 3 Gi)) 8,000,000 -
At 31 December 2015 of R-_ZE—RFE+-_A=+—H
HK$0.004 each BREE0.004E T2 Krin 10,000,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRER:
Ordinary shares EimiR
At 1 January 2014 of HK$0.02 each RZZE—mFE—A—H
HREE.02E T 2R 500,000 10,000
Issue of shares (note (iii) R& 17 2% 77 (BT i) 100,000 2,000
At 31 December 2014 and R-T—WFE+=A
1 January 2015 of HK$0.02 each =t+—BAk=ZE—RF—A—H
BREE0.02B T2 ktn 600,000 12,000
Share subdivision (note (ii)) R0 4% (Bt aEGi)) 2,400,000 =
Issue of shares (note (iii)) R {0 1T (B 3 Gii)) 2,040,000 8,160
At 31 December 2015 of R-E—RAF+-F=+—H
HK$0.004 each BREE0.004E T2 rin 5,040,000 20,160
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(a) Share capital (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Share subdivision

By an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting on 5 January 2015, every issued
and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each were
subdivided into five new ordinary shares of HK$0.004
each (the “Share Subdivision”). Following the Share
Subdivision which became effective on 6 January
2015, the Company’s authorised share capital was
HK$40,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares
of HK$0.004 each, of which 3,000,000,000 ordinary
shares were in issue and fully paid.

Issue of shares

Pursuant to the placing made by the Company on
9 October 2014, the Company issued 50,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each at a subscription price
of HK$0.65 per share, resulting in net proceeds of
approximately HK$31,607,000.

Pursuant to the placing made by the Company on 26
November 2014, the Company issued 50,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each at a subscription price
of HK$0.65 per share, resulting in net proceeds of
approximately HK$31,528,000.

On 19 January 2015, the Company issued 600,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.004 each on the basis of one
new share for every five existing shares then held (the
“Bonus Issue”). These new shares were credited as
fully paid by capitalisation of HK$2,400,000 standing
to the credit of share premium account. Details of
the Bonus Issue are set out in the Company’s circular
and announcement dated 17 December 2014 and 19
January 2015 respectively.

26 EXKf#E(E)
B ()

(a)

(i)

(iif)

W17 5
BER-_Z—HE—ARA
BOZBRRENREBBHN
—HITRRARZEER  SRAE
0.02BILHE BT RARET
TR WAEERSTREE
0.004 W 7T & @A% ([ A%
BoR])  c BROSHERZE
—HF—ASNBE®RE > K
A AVE T % 7K A 40,000,000
7T 9 £ 10,000,000,000
% & A% 18 0.004 78 7T 2 &
3 » H#3,000,000,000 % &
BRACEITRER -

BR1GET
BEARNTIR-_Z—MNE+
ANBETHESE + XQF
%% 7750,000,000 f% & A% ™ &
0.02B LML B - REE
ABER0.658 T 0 Fr8IA
SHEAA) 531,607,00058 7T °

BEAATIN T —MWE
+— A+ BETHE
& + N2 A)#1750,000,000
BEMKEENRE THE

Bl RBEBEAEETROGS
BT TBRBEIFENOA

31,528,000/ 7T °

R—_ZE—HEF—A+AhA8 "
K A &l % 77 600,000,000 A%
F A% E0.0047%8 T B @
I ZESERSHEEAR
BERMAEE —RFTR
(T4IREEETT]) - ZSEFRE
FEREAMEBR D RERER
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26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(@) Share capital (Continued)

(iii)

Issue of shares (Continued)
Pursuant to the placing made by the Company on
29 April 2015, the Company issued 600,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.004 each at a subscription
price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in net proceeds of
approximately HK$58,909,000.

Pursuant to the placing made by the Company on 11
November 2015, the Company issued 840,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.004 each at a subscription
price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in net proceeds of
approximately HK$81,606,000.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman lIslands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall in the ordinary course of business.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents capital contribution
from shareholders in the form of interest-free loans.
The amounts are estimated by discounting the
nominal value of their non-interest bearing loans to
the Group at current market interest rate for similar
financial instruments. An early repayment of interest-
free loans represents a reduction in contribution from
shareholders and reduces capital reserve accordingly.

Capital surplus

Capital surplus comprises the unconditional waiver of
loans and advances by shareholders of the Company
and the Group's former subsidiary.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of a foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 2(x).

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Capital management

The Group'’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments as to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as total debt (which includes financial
assistance from government and consideration payable
for business combination), less cash and cash equivalents.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on an annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of debt and cost of capital. Based on the
recommendation of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debts.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate amounts of reserves
available for distribution to owners of the Company was
HK$172,227,000 (2014: HK$89,563,000).
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(c)

(d)

EXER
AEBEREANERBERRER
75 EE om e AR 755 1O (B AR AT 0 S LR 4
WK FRIZAEKAEZERE -
REAKEFBELCEEBNEN
femAgEBERBCRIRHEHE SR
RS A AR o

AEEEBLEMHERNRERR
BERER  NERSBEREHE
AT A2 BB EEKFER
HEVE RN E R4 RAREZ
BEGFE  YRRLERRENE
EHERNRBIELAR

AEBUEHBERFRHELRLL
RREE  BEERHBERER - #itt
mE  KRABRBHFENTEL/E
BRE(BRBRMBEDREBE
HEMRE)BRRELREFEY
KHBEABEMBEREAR °

ARBERRFENENEE - £
RBUEH 2D  EEZEEEBL
BAKAE - AEERBRBES 2 H
BERBEBAXMNERE - BITHEMA
REBETEBFELERENGE

AR A R BAE AR 8 & B3 A & 5k
SR E AR E IR o

DikiAE
R-ZE—RFE+-_A=+—0 7
SR FARBIHE AN ERSE
£172,227,0008 (= — M :
89,563,000/ 7T ) °

RETREEERAA
F3%2015




114

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to
these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, loans receivable, interest receivables and

27 MBEREEREMIAR
P
FE RPEE  MEREEERRIINA
SE-—REBBETEL - AEEMEY
MR kA S EEEZERRMRA
Z R ERBRRERIANT o

(a) FERR
AEENEERR T ERARKE
RN E MW - BRER - B

cash and cash equivalents. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. Trade receivables are normally due on
presentation of billing or due within 30 days from the date of
billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers. As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a certain
concentration of credit risk as 17% (2014: 19%) of the total

MENRRERACEEY - EE
BEEREERRERGESEZEE
BB

PLEBRIRRME - WA BRI
BETEESENEFPOGHETHE
AEERE - BURERR—RRNER
RERIHNEHRERHES30
BREH - —RMEF  AEELE
AEFRGERR R-_FT—HF
tTZA=+—8 AEEBRLET

trade receivables was due from the largest debtor.
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

For loans and interest receivables, the Group manages and
analyses the credit risk for each of the new and existing
borrowers before standard payment terms and conditions are
offered. If there is no independent rating, the Group assesses
the credit quality of the borrower based on the borrower’s
financial position, past experience and other factors. For
loans which principal exceed a predetermined amount, the
Group holds collateral against these loans receivable and
interest receivables in the form of guarantee executed by the
guarantor. Individual risk limits are set based on the value of
collaterals provided by borrowers, if required, and internal or
external ratings in accordance with limits set by the directors.
The credit quality classification of loans receivable and their
respective interest receivables using the Group’s credit rating

27 BEREERSEMIARD
SPE (1)

(a)

=EREE (&)

HELEREMEME - AEER
REARES M IRK R MR - B
R EEHRERREERANE
SRk - WEBLIL  AEEE
ERERANMBNRR - BELR
REMAEFHEERANEEE
R oRAHEEBREEHENER
ME - AEBURERARINOER
TR Bt 2% 55 B B SR K e MR A B
BHEMm - ERIMZERRREE
RERARFEHER D (HER)E
ERBRBEESFRENRBERAZD
FINFRRE - RAAKEEE
FRBENERERLEEBHNE

system is set out in the table below: W BEMEEEE D EHRTE ¢
2015 2014
—Z—EHF —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Performing B4 113,182 -
Doubtful KR - -
Loss EE = -
113,182 -

The Group considers the loans and respective interest WA S Rk, HEERE B RA

receivables as doubtful if the repayment of principal and/or of
interest has been overdue and principal, accrued interest and/
or future interest may not be fully secured by the collaterals.
The Group considers the loans and respective interest
receivables as loss if the repayment of principal and/or of
interest has been overdue for more than 12 months and the
collection of principal and/or of interest in full is improbable.

£ - BEFE R RARRF B TR
mEFRE2HER  ARESZE
ERRIAENEEMNBE /R
HARE R,/ HMEEREBHEBG
TZEARNRES R BTRE
2HERE - ARESZEER KA
R &) JRE KR S AR S B R
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group estimates and recognises impairment losses for
the loans and interest receivables considered as “doubtful”
and “loss”, taking into account of the fair values of collaterals
which are inadequate to cover the loans and interest
receivables. Since all principals and interest receivables were
not overdue and were secured by the collaterals, if required,
the amount of doubtful and loss of loans and interest
receivables were HK$Nil as at 31 December 2015.

The Group performs collective assessment of the loans
receivable considered as “performing” by grouping together
all its receivables with similar credit risk characteristics.
The impairment review is carried out on all those loans
and interest receivables based on the historical impairment
rates. Since the historical impairment rate is zero during
the financial years, the directors therefore consider that the
collective impairment loss is HK$Nil as at 31 December 2015.

The amount of provision for impairment is monitored by the
management on a monthly basis.

Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers constituted
approximately 31% and 65% of the Group's loans receivable
balance respectively as at 31 December 2015.

The directors consider that the credit risk arising from the
loans receivable is significantly mitigated by the collaterals
held, if required.

Cash and cash equivalents are normally placed at financial
institutions that have sound credit ratings and the directors
consider that the credit risk in liquid funds is limited.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 17.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 MBEBEEREMIAAR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (b) REESEMR
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible AEEANEREEEREEEARS
for their own cash management, including the short term Z2REER  BAERcEH#BZES
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover BEREFIEMUABNIERREH
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly 2 AEBEZBREEHETER
monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains PESF R UHEREFZEERS
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of EEhkEHEEES  UENERE
funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and HERARBESHER -
longer term.
The following table shows the remaining contractual TRANREB 2 2RBERRS
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the HREARKZHBTIIHNIEA - T
Group's financial liabilities, which is based on contractual ERCATNARERSRE (BRERE
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments RETAMREFHEZFEFIA - W
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on 2B AIRBEREABERF 2
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the WMAITFEAF) AR EE T E
earliest date the Group can be required to pay: KRz &FBE
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
31 December 2015 amount cash flow on demand 5 years
BiAARE —FR3HS SR—F
ZE-REF+ZAZ1-8 BEE BRERELH RER BIREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT FEx Fhx
Other payables H iR 2,481 2,481 2,481 -
Financial assistance from government  FifF&1HiE By 371 371 325 46
Consideration payable for business 2B AHERNA(E
combination 28,247 30,000 10,000 20,000
31,099 32,852 12,806 20,046

REFREEEGR AR
F#H2015 | i
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

27 BEREERSEMIARD
SPE (48)

(b) REBEZEMRE(E)

Total More than

contractual Within 1 year but

Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than

31 December 2014 amount cash flow on demand 5 years

BATMARE  —FRIHR SHR—F

“E-mE+-A=+—H REE RenELdH REX BLRLEF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEL FET TET TER

Other payables HAERR 1,923 1,923 1,923 =

Financial assistance from government BT 81 BiE B 683 683 196 487
Consideration payable for business EBEHERRE

combination 26,902 30,000 = 30,000

29,508 32,606 2,119 30,487

(c) Interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from loans
receivable. Loans issued at fixed rate exposes the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. The Group's interest rate profile as
monitored by management is set out below.

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group'’s interest-earning loans at the end of the reporting

() FEm&
AEBZNERBRTIERAREE
Ko ERERSAREBRAZ QY
ENXRERE - EREEEAEEZ
MEEAEIIMT -

TRALNRBREHEERE RN EE
ARERZMEAES -

period.
2015 2014
“E-nf —T-mE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate % HK$'000 rate % HK$'000
BEBRFAE% TET BERFIZE% THT
Fixed rate loan EEEX
Loans receivable el E 10.0% 111,800 9.6% 5,262

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

27 BEREERSEMIARD
SPE (1)

(CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (o) F=Ek(E)
The interest rates and terms of repayment of the Group's REE 2 W E R T F K&K
loans receivable are disclosed in note 18. MU 18 B ER -
As at 31 December 2015, the changes in market interest rates R_F—AF+-_A=+—8"
would have no impact on the Group's loss for the year and HRABERKEROMEEE
accumulated losses (2014: HK$Nil) as all loans receivable are MG RO E W Y KEBF
at fixed interest rate. NEBRKRFTEBEBEKERNZE
(ZZE—WF : THET) »
(d) Currency risk (d) E¥ER
The Group’s business activities and its assets and liabilities AEBEBEHRAEEHRBEMN
were denominated in HK$ and RMB. The management BTRAREIE - EEERB/A
considers the Group is not exposed to significant foreign SEVWEEBHERIINERR AR
currency risk as most sales, income, purchases and expenses REDHE - WA - BERHAZH
are denominated in the functional currency of the operations NHMBAEB e EEEHE - &
to which they relate. The Group currently does not have a SE B AT EINEE FE - A
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management - BEREERIMNERRRERE
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider FEREREPERINERR o
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.
(e) Categories of financial instruments (e) €WMIANERI
2015 2014
—E-AF —TmE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FA&T
Financial assets SHEE
Loan and receivables (including cash and EXNMEWZE(REERE K
cash equivalents) REEEY) 160,109 35,344
Financial liabilities SHAaE
Financial liabilities measured at RHEKATTEZSRAE
amortised cost 2,852 2,606
Consideration payable for business EBaOHEANRE -
combination, measured at fair value BATHERE 28,247 26,902
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(PABTTEIR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(f) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Consideration payable for business combination
includes contingent consideration which is measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period on
a recurring basis. The fair value measurements of
the contingent consideration is categorised as Level
3, whose fair value is measured using significant
unobservable inputs, as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement.

The Group’s finance department performs valuations
for the Level 3 financial instruments. The finance
department reports directly to the management and
the audit committee. A valuation report with analysis
of changes in fair value measurement is prepared by
the finance department at each annual reporting date,
and is reviewed and approved by the management.
Discussion of the valuation process and results with the
management and the audit committee is held once a
year.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 MBEBEEREMIAAR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(f) Fair value measurement (Continued) (f) ~FEFEGE)
(i) Financial liabilities measured at fair value (i) BRFETAECLHEE
The following table provides information about Level 3 TREHREBAE=AAFE
fair value measurements: rEZER

Fair value as at
31 December

RT=A=+—-BZ2¥E  valuation Significant
Financial liabilities 2015 2014 techniques unobservable
tRAE —E-EF —Z-0mF M#HESFX ERTABREGASE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Contingent consideration 28,247 26,902 Discounted cash  Discount rate of 5.0%
in business combination flow method was (2014: 5.0%) determined
used to capture  with reference to the
the present Hong Kong Prime rate;
value of the and probability-adjusted

expected future  revenue and profits of NH
cash outflows of ~ Group for the years ending
the Group from 31 December 2016 and
the contingent 2017 (2014: 31 December
consideration. 2015, 2016 and 2017).
EBAMHIIARE FERERFERE BRES.0%(ZT—N

EUNRHARE  F5.0%)2EFEHEER
BHAKEEG AERREEEEBEZE_T
ARBREREE —AEFRZZFE—tF+=

ZHME - A=+ BLEFE(ZZ
—mFET—RF - =F
—RNER_E—+&E+=

A=t+—RB)ZmgeitAE
Yok I i A1) B E
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)
(i) Financial liabilities measured at fair value
(Continued)
Note: A slight increase in the discount rate used in isolation would
result in a significant decrease in the fair value measurement
of the contingent consideration, and vice versa.

A slight increase in the probability-adjusted revenue and
profits of NH Group used inisolation would result in a
significant increase in the fair value measurement of the
contingent consideration, and vice versa.

The movement during the year in the balance of this

BEREEREMIARD
SP{E ()

(f) 2DFEFTEGER)
() BAFEEZEHAE
(%)
ik BB 2 MR
B AR EATE BOA
BB R2IA -

ERERZAEZEREZ AR
M B Uk R R A O S
HRAREBRFEFTENKN
e RZIA -

TN BE=ROTEHE

Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: EEBREHWT
2015 2014
—E-IF —E—OF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At 1 January “n—HA—H 26,902 6,052
Total loss in profit or loss RIBRZ EEE%E 1,345 48
Additions NE - 26,855
Settlement e - (6,053)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 28,247 26,902

(if)  Financial assets/liabilities carried at other than
fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2015 and 2014.
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28 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(a)

On 31 December 2012, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in KanHan Technologies Limited and its subsidiary,
KanHan Technologies China Limited from independent third
parties at a nominal consideration of HK$28,000,000 (the
"KHT Acquisition”). The consideration was satisfied in the
manner as set out in the sale and purchase agreement dated
26 June 2012 in respect of the KHT Acquisition.

The first payment of HK$4,000,000 was settled in cash on
3 July 2012. The 1st Promissory Notes were issued on 31
December 2012 and redeemed by paying HK$15,000,000
in cash on 28 February 2013. The remaining consideration
payable of HK$6,053,000, being the remaining nominal
consideration payable of HK$9,000,000 less the shortfall
amount of HK$2,947,000, was settled in cash during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

On 27 June 2014, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in KanHan Educational Services Limited and its
subsidiary, KanHan Educational Services China Limited
(together, “KHE Group”) from an independent third party
at a nominal consideration of HK$6,500,000 (the “KHE
Acquisition”). KHE Group is principally engaged in the
provision of software platform.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 23 June
2014 in respect of the KHE Acquisition, the consideration was
settled in cash on 27 June 2014.

The consideration is subject to adjustment based on
the audited consolidated profit before taxation and any
extraordinary or exceptional items of KHE Group of not less
than HK$1,000,000 for each of the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2015 respectively (the “KHE Guaranteed Amount”).
The consideration shall be reduced by an amount equal to any
shortfall.

The audited consolidated profit before taxation and any
extraordinary or exceptional items of KHE Group exceeds
HK$1,000,000 for the each of the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2015.

28 XK E6f

(a)

(b)
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SEABLE=-FRERERES
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HIZARR T ——FAZ+RX
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B HA {5 34,000,000 T E N - F
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=+—HBET IR _T—=F_
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

28 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

(0

On 17 December 2014, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in Native Hope Limited from an independent third
party at a nominal consideration of HK$90,000,000 (the “NH
Acquisition”). Native Hope Limited has the entire interest in
Fair Respect International Limited, Shenzhen Xiaoke Internet
Technology Company Limited and 51% interest in Shenzhen
Zhoufu Internet Technology Company Limited (together, “NH
Group”) as at the date of acquisition. NH Group is principally
engaged in the provision of software platform.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 11
December 2014 in respect of the NH Acquisition (the “NH
Acquisition Agreement”), the consideration would be
satisfied in the following manner:

(i)  as to HK$23,000,000 in cash within 7 business days
after signing of the memorandum of understanding on
13 October 2014 in respect of the NH Acquisition;

(i) as to HK$37,000,000 in cash within 7 business days
upon execution of the NH Acquisition Agreement;

(iii) as to HK$10,000,000 in cash within 7 business days
after issuance of the audited accounts of NH Group for
the year ended 31 December 2015;

(iv) as to HK$10,000,000 in cash within 7 business days
after issuance of the audited accounts of NH Group for
the year ending 31 December 2016; and

(v) as to HK$10,000,000 in cash within 7 business days
after issuance of the audited accounts of NH Group for
the year ending 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, total consideration of
HK$60,000,000 has been settled in cash in accordance with
the term of payment as set out above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

28 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

(@]

(Continued)

The remaining consideration payable is subject to adjustment
based on the audited consolidated profit after taxation but
before extraordinary or exceptional items attributable to
the owners of the Company of NH Group of not less than
HK$10,000,000, HK$13,000,000 and HK$15,000,000 for the
year ending 31 December 2015, 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2017 respectively (the “NH Guaranteed Amount”).
The consideration payable shall be reduced by an amount
equal to any shortfall.

The audited consolidated profit after taxation but before
extraordinary or exceptional items attributable to the owners
of the Company of NH Group exceeds HK$10,000,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, based on the assessment of the
directors of the Company, the possibility of shortfall against
the NH Guaranteed Amount for each of the years ending 31
December 2016 and 2017 is remote, and consequently the
fair value of guarantee asset is HK$Nil.

28 XBE /(&)

(@)

(&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

28 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

(d)  The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired
as at the respective dates of KHE Acquisition and NH
Acquisition and is as follows:

28 XBE 6 (&)

(d) REEBRFUBEELRZUES
HEH BB ZERBEERA

BAFELT
KHE Group NH Group Total
BEYEEE REEKEH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT AT
Property, plant and equipment Y - BERFZE 119 94 213
Intangible assets M EE 5,007 23,605 28,612
Deferred tax assets BEERRIEEE 163 = 163
Trade and other receivables 7 UK B TR K EL th B U 3R 648 668 1,316
Cash and cash equivalents HEREEEED 1,658 7,247 8,905
Other payables HMERR (51) (531) (582)
Deferred income WA (2,333) (1,211) (3,544)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE (147) (5,901) (6,042)
Fair value of net identifiable assets  CWIEKAIH#AZEER
acquired FE 5,070 23,971 29,041
Non-controlling interests* JEIE AR R 2 - (11,233) (11,233)
Net identifiable assets attributable to ZNA &% A A & A 5% 5l
owners of the Company BEE 5,070 12,738 17,808
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEELE7P/E 1,430 74,117 75,547
Total consideration BRE 6,500 86,855 93,355
Total consideration, satisfied by: BREGUTIFAEZN
Cash He 6,500 60,000 66,500
Fair value of consideration EAREREZAFEE
payable in cash - 26,855 26,855
6,500 86,855 93,355
Net cash outflow arising on WEEA 7R R F5E -
acquisition:
Consideration paid in cash BEffRENAE (6,500) (60,000) (66,500)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BUEMNRSRBELSE
) 1,658 7,247 8,905
(4,842) (52,753) (57,595)
Acquisition-related costs Uy % B RA R A 300 —* 300
3 The non-controlling interests are measured at the non-controlling g IR R VIR ER D HA

interests’ proportionate share of fair value of the identifiable net
assets of NH Group.

* The acquisition-related costs of NH Group are borne by the seller.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

28 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

(e)

The goodwill is attributable to the synergies of the acquired
businesses expected to arise after the Group’s acquisitions.
These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected to
be deductible for tax purposes.

Acquisition-related costs have been excluded from the
consideration transferred and have been recognised as
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Included in the revenue for the year ended 31 December 2014
are approximately HK$3,646,000 and HK$Nil attributable
to the additional business generated by KHE Group and NH
Group respectively. Loss for the year ended 31 December
2014 includes profit of approximately HK$597,000 and loss
of HK$417,000 contributed by KHE Group and NH Group
respectively.

Had these business combinations been taken place on 1
January 2014, the directors of the Company estimate that the
consolidated revenue and the consolidated loss for the year
ended 31 December 2014 would have been HK$24,369,000
and HK$781,000 respectively. This pro-forma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and result of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisitions
been completed on 1 January 2014.

29 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 13 October 2014, the Group disposed of the entire equity
interest in PTL for a cash consideration of HK$8. At the date
of disposal, PTL has net liabilities of approximately HK$1,000
(including cash and cash equivalent of HK$54). A gain on disposal
of subsidiary of approximately HK$1,000 is resulted and is included
in loss for the year from discontinued operation for the year ended
31 December 2014 (see note 9).

28 XBE /(&)

(e)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

30 COMMITMENTS 30 7&iE
(a)  Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2015 @ RZZE—RFE+-A=+—HBHFXR
not provided for in the consolidated financial statements AP BMR B 2 REE AP
were as follows: mr
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Contracted for properties under ERMBERAYEITLN
development 396 =
(b) As at 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease by RZE—RF+-A=+—H IR
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable BAREMEBELEHEE RN 2 KKK
as follows: R A FIBEZE T -
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Within 1 year —FR 3,639 951
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREERFRA 5,698 309
9,337 1,260
The Group is the lessee in respect of its office premises held REBRBBREEMHEREZHR
under operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of EMELEBEA c BEAEEZYS
6 months to 3 years (2014: 2 to 3 years), with an option to HRANERAE=ZF(ZZ—MNF :
renew the leases when all terms are renegotiated. None of ME=F)  AEEBEMERAEG
the leases includes contingent rentals. RHEERE - HEEASEESHA
e -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31 ERBEEAIRZ K&K
AND BALANCES

(a) EEEEAEHMH
AEETZEEABHFMERENE
10 ERBEZENARAEEHAR
MEVAREZENE T &R HMH
BEZFIR  FHEMT

(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the directors of the Company
as disclosed in note 10 and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 11, is as follows:

2015 2014
—ZE-EF —T—lF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Short-term employee benefits HEREEREF 5,258 3,081
Post-employment benefits BERR 2R A 99 /3
5,357 8, iyl
(b) Transactions with other related parties (b) EHEMBEIRS
2015 2014
—E-IF —E-MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Sales of goods to a related company* MEEATINEE R - 698
o The related company is controlled by Wen Jialong, a former * BEARBHARRAAITEEER
executive director of the Company. TR o
(c) Balances with related parties are disclosed in note 17 and the (c) WmEBEFEMZESEENME7

K iFE34(a) AR R BARR K o

Company'’s statement of financial position in note 34(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

32 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD
Save as disclosed below and in note 10 to these consolidated

financial statements, the Group does not have other significant
events after the reporting period.

(a)

(b)

Change in directorship

Lam Kit Yan had been appointed as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 18 January 2016 and resigned
on 23 February 2016.

Zeng Shiquan had been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 18
January 2016 and resigned on 23 February 2016.

Mui Yuk Wah has been appointed as an executive director of
the Company with effect with from 23 February 2016.

Leung Man Chun has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 23
February 2016.

Hung Tai Chi Alan has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company with effect from 2 March 2016.

Fok Kin Fung Eric has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 2 March
2016.

Lee Nim Wai has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 16 March
2016.

Share consolidation and increase in authorised

share capital

By an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting on 19 February 2016, every ten issued and unissued
ordinary shares of HK$0.004 each were consolidated into one
new ordinary share of HK$0.04 each. Following the share
consolidation which became effective on 22 February 2016,
the Company’s authorised share capital was HK$40,000,000
divided into 1,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.04 each, of which
504,000,000 ordinary shares were in issue and fully paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

32 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE 32 HEMRHIARSEHE(A)
REPORTING PERIOD (CONTINUED)
(b) Share consolidation and increase in authorised (b) BOEHREINEERA(E)
share capital (Continued)
Upon the share consolidation becoming effective, the RBEMEMERE  ARRZE
Company’s authorised share capital was increase from E B% 72N # 1% 5% %8 41 2,000,000,000
HK$40,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 shares to & B% 15 i B 40,000,000 & T
HK$120,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 shares by the ( % A& 1,000,000,000 f% P& 13 )
creation of an additional 2,000,000,000 shares. # 0 = 120,000,000 & 7T (5 A

3,000,000,0000% %17 ) °

(c) Disposal of NH Group () HEARZELRHE
On 9 March 2016, the Company entered into a conditional RZE-—XRF=ZANA  ARA
sale and purchase agreement with the purchaser, who is the HERAEZRBEENALZE
seller of NH Group in the NH Acquisition, pursuant to which BERH BRI N BBREEERZ -
the Company has conditionally agreed to sell its entire equity Bt ARARBKRHEREHEER
interest in NH Group and all outstanding amount owed by REEENRERAEERRES
NH Group to the other entities within the Group at a nominal EERAEENHEME 2 FE -
consideration of HK$93,750,000. Of which, HK$30,000,000 % % {8 593,750,000 7T - B
will be settled by the purchaser upon completion of the HETKRE - BT EBERERNAR]
disposal by setting off the remaining nominal consideration HRENBEEARAZRBEENSRTS
of HK$30,000,000 payable by the Company to the purchase 2 X {8 30,000,000 % JT /& & & &
for the NH Acquisition. NH Group is principally engaged in the 30,000,000/87T - RAEEBEEBH
provision of software platform and the business is classified ERTEEMTE  BRBOBARIE
as “software platform” segment. Details of the proposed HFEE 108 - ZRHESHNFE
disposal are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 9 BRARAREMAE T —RF=H
March 2016. NAZRE -

(d) Proposed acquisitions (d) ZHEWE
On 20 January 2016, a subsidiary of the Group entered into a RZE—RE—HA=Z+H  ARQ7F
memorandum of understanding (“MOU") with independent MEBAREBYE =TT LA
third parties regarding a proposed acquisition of a PRC entity AEENPEEENETFREEA
which is principally engaged in mobile games development, T ZERBMNTEER AR
operation and promotion in the PRC. Btk ([ FRRE =)
On 11 March 2016, the Company entered into a MOU with RZZE—ANF=H+T—H ' &AA
independent third parties regarding a proposed acquisition of BB 58 = 5 T A B B A
a BVI entity and its subsidiaries which are principally engaged BERERETEEEMBWTENETF
in development, operation and publication of mobile games Bk EAIEANREE  EER
and application and have the principal place of business in EMMNRBRE IS ER R ENE
Hong Kong. NEZ AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTEIR)
33 SUBSIDIARIES 33 MEBAT
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which TRESETEZEREFELSL - EEN
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The BENHBATRIZE - BB AETEHI -
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. BHERMOOER B m -
Country of Particulars of
incorporation issued and paid Proportion of effective
Name of company and operation up capital ownership interest Principal activity
KR BRTR EREER
AR ER EEMEER BRRAFHE sl FTEXH
Direct Indirect
HE EikE
Aurum Pacific Management Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) 100% - Investment holding and provision
of administrative services
BHERERAR £ TRRA (%) REZR RERBETHE R RS
Corporate Model Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
EBRELHES 181 ETTRR REZR
Star Regal Investments Limited Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) 100% - Investment holding
BEREBB AR BE 1R (1787T) REZK
KanHan Technologies Limited Hong Kong 363,636 shares - 100%  Investment holding and provision
(HK$7,200,000) of software platform
EENBBRAR & 363,636/ %17 REZRRRESAT A
(7,200,0007%7T)
KanHan Technologies China Limited ~ PRC HK$1,000,000 - 100%  Provision of software platform
(notes 2 and 4)
EMEERRERARA(HT2Rk4)  +E 1,000,000/ 7T RERHTR
KanHan Educational Services Limited  Hong Kong 5,010,000 shares - 100%  Investment holding and provision
(HK$5,010,000) of software platform
EEHERBBRAA Bk 5,010,000 13 REZERREHEEN T
(5,010,000 7T)
KanHan Educational Services PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Provision of software platform
China Limited
(notes 2 and 4)
BMNELEHARBRBRAR H NG REZHTE
GBI 1,000,007
Aurum Pacific Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) - 100%  Provision of money lending
business
BB BERAR B 1R (1787T) ey e
Native Hope Limited BVI 50,000 shares of 100% - Investment holding and provision
US$1 each of software platform
REERAF RERUES 50,000 REZRRREES T
1XRTTR A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

33 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Country of
incorporation

Particulars of
issued and paid

33 MEBLF(A)

Proportion of effective

Name of company and operation up capital ownership interest Principal activity
K LR ERITR BREER
AREB BEMEAR BRRAFE : £:3:417] TEXK
Direct Indirect
B Cik
Fair Respect International Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100%  Investment holding and provision
(HK$10,000) of software platform
ENEBRBRAR Bk 10,0008 &7 REZRBRRRHEES T
(10,000%7T)
Shenzhen Xiaoke Internet PRC HK$1,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding and provision
Technology Company Limited of software platform
(notes 2 and 4)
AT RS R AR D A H 1,000,000/ 7T REBRRRHEMATA
(M2 54)
Shenzhen Zhoufu Internet PRC HK$1,000,000 - 51%  Provision of software platform
Technology Company Limited
(notes 3 and 4)
AYMEBERRBRAR H 1,000,0007%7T REZMHTE
(353 %4)
Maoming Yuexi Zhoufu Internet PRC RMBNil - 100%  Provision of software platform
Technology Company Limited
(notes 1, 3 and 4)
KEmERMERERRERAR H AREET = RE#RMFa
(FH5E1 ~ 3%4)
Jiaxing Jiajian Intelligent Technology ~ PRC US$1,442,000 - 100%  Property development
Company Limited
(notes 1, 2 and 4)
FEZREERMERRR H 1,442,000% 7T = NEER
(fizE1 - 2R4)
Notes: B3
1. Incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2015. 1. RZE—AF+-A=+—BILFE=xMf
BRI ©
2. Registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprise under PRC law. 2 REBEPEEZETMAIEBEERE -
3. Registered as domestic-owned enterprise under PRC law. 3. BEPEZEFMARNERE -
4. The English translation of the name is for reference only. The official name 4. ENEBRERDE HNEBREEZE
of the entity is in Chinese. T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTYT)
33 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 33 fIEAT (&)
The following table lists out the information relating to Shenzhen TREVNEBEEBEATRER([IE
Zhoufu, a subsidiary of the Group which has material non- TR DR RS E 2B R TIRINNE
controlling interest (“NCI”). The summarised financial information RIER - To M BERBERERARIEYE
presented below represents the amounts before any inter-company HATR & &8 ©
elimination.
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—MF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
NClI percentage FEERERA DL 49% 49%
Non-current assets FERBEE 32 98
Current assets MENEE 3,028 5,477
Current liabilities MEAE (655) (716)
Net assets BERE 2,405 4,859
Carrying amount of NC| FEFERE R RE(E 4,618 11,056
Revenue g 25 4,803 =
Loss for the year/period FE/HMEE (2,220) (362)
Total comprehensive loss RAEEEE (2,493) (381)
Loss allocated to NCI A E IR EREE (5.834) (177)
Dividends paid to NCI RS B IR R B = -
Cash flows used in operating activities, net 484 %% FTARIIR S i & %58 (3.582) (1,592)
Cash flows generated from/(used in) BREEBFAE/(FRA)NERS
investing activities, net mE R 1,224 (1,266)
Cash flows from financing activities, net  REEFEBFANR S REFE = -
Note: The results and cash flows information for the year ended 31 December Mzt UEZ2FBE_T—NFF+_A=+—H
2014 presented above represent the post-acquisition results and cash flows IEFEZ¥BERASRENENTIEZT
from 17 December 2014 (date of acquisition) to 31 December 2014. —mNE+-_A++tB(KBRE) E-F
—MOE+ A=+ RKEENEBRE

PN -}
TneE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTEIR)

34 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 3 XARIZHBER
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position (a) BN R
2015 2014
—E—FE —ET—FE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Non-current assets RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR Z®E 86,855 86,855
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE UK BT BB A R 3R 1B 122,599 35,811
Deposits and prepayments e MIBRFE 1,236 250
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIBEEEYD 14,524 11,587
138,359 47,648
Current liabilities RBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETB B A Rl A 164 1,508
Other payables and accrued charges Efth R R R FEET & A 546 660
Consideration payable for business EBKEHEMNRE
combination 9,879 -
10,589 2,168
Net current assets REBEEFE 127,770 45,480
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRABAE 214,625 132,335
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Consideration payable for business EBKEHEMRE
combination 18,368 26,902
NET ASSETS EEEE 196,257 105,433
Capital and reserves EAXRfHE
Share capital A& A 20,160 12,000
Reserves fEfE 176,097 93,433
TOTAL EQUITY fERBE 196,257 105,433
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

34 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

34 ARRZMBEME)

(b) Details of changes in the Company’s individual components (b) EATERFEEIS MBS FEIBW
of reserve during the year: T
Share Share Capital Capital  Accumulated
capital premium reserve surplus losses Total
e RivEE EUN-1 E5E5 2itER &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL ThL TR TR TR TR
(note 26(b)(i)  (note 26(b)(i))  (note 26(b)fiii))
(Pi=26(0)))  (REE26(0)i)  (BizE26(0)i)
At 1 January 2014 R-B-ME-A-A 10,000 81,150 2,261 1,609 (50,596) 44,424
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FESERZERTLEE
expense for the year - - - - (2,126) (2,126)
Issue of shares (note 26(a)if) %774 (FizE26(a)ii)) 2,000 61,135 = = 4 63,135
2,000 61,135 - - (2,126) 61,009
At 31 December 2014 R-B-mE+-A=1-AH 12,000 142,285 2,261 1,609 (52,722) 105,433
At 1 January 2015 R-E-1F-F-H 12,000 142,285 2,261 1,609 (52,722) 105,433
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FEBERZ AR EE
expense for the year - - - - (49,691) (49,691)
Issue of shares (note 26(a)fi) ~ %47M& {7 (Fii26(a)ii) 8,160 132,355 S S S 140,515
8,160 132,355 - - (49,691) 90,824
At 31 December 2015 R-E-R%+=-A=1-H 20,160 274,640 2,261 1,609 (102,413) 196,257

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBWARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTIIR)
35 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 35 iR K
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and
other uncertainties affecting application of those policies and
the sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions and
assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing the
consolidated financial statements. The principal accounting policies
are set forth in note 2. The Group believes the following critical
accounting policies involve the most significant judgements and
estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

(a) Impairment loss on intangible assets
The carrying amounts of intangible assets that are not yet
available for use are reviewed annually in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined below the
carrying amounts. When such a decline has occurred, the
carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and the value in use. In determining the
value in use, the expected cash flows generated by the
intangible assets are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgement relating to the level of future
software revenue and the amount of service costs. The
Group uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of software revenue
and the amount of service costs, and discount rate.

Et RA G S EETE - LWABER
BEREMCAR(BREEXLBERTEHARRK
EMMAIETER) RIKE -

EEHGEAMBREN  FEERIEE
AAERREER  FESIBREREERN
R EM I EERER - UEM2HEE
EEBRHGXBERARBREPTE - TBE
SRR E N2 - REBEMEE - X
SR BRI R ERBRAMBHRRER
)& = 2T KA -

(a) EBFEERERE
HAARERZ BV EEZREE
gRFERT - AFFEAIKRESREE
LBEREENEEE - EHR bt
TH®ERE - REESHEARD
T e

] W (o] 5 B A A S EUR H B RS e
EREEZRE -EEEAEE
- AMEPEEELZRERE
TERRERRE  MEEREZRY
R e B BRIS X A 2 FEE H
ERHE - ARBEER— A NEF
ZEM BEAKRESEAEOIK
ZEH BREREAERENZR
R IER - fh R R R AR TS A
REBRARRIRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTEIR)

35 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment loss on goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.
Details of the impairment loss calculation are set out in note
16.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses. As
these deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the unused tax benefits can be utilised,
management'’s judgement is required to assess the probability
of future taxable profits. Management’s assessment is
constantly received and additional deferred tax assets are
recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered; conversely,
the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or all of
that deferred tax asset to be utilised. Details of the nature and
carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are disclosed in note
23(b).

Impairment loss on loans receivable, interest

receivables and trade and other receivables
Impairment loss on loans receivable, interest receivables
and trade and other receivables is assessed and provided
based on management’s regular review of ageing analysis
and evaluation of collectability. A considerable level of
judgement is exercised by the management when assessing
the credit worthiness and past collection history of each
individual borrower/customer. Any increase or decrease in the
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debt would affect the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income in future
years.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2015

35 EEHhEH R M E (&)

(b)

(c)

(d)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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36

37

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2015 and which have not been adopted in these
consolidated financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group:

HEXSGEUBBRREHEY  FEe

AR BEMEZREE  MERKRR

B AREE_ZE—AFT+A=1+—8H

IFFERARER - RITERZEGEE M

R AR o LT RATEE AL E AR
ZEZER

Effective for

accounting

periods beginning

on or after

ENT g zE

Bz St EEN

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 cycle
BERVBREEN - —_FFE - NFAMNFESE
Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative

ARG ERE R - [HEREFE]

1 January 2016

—E-RF-HA—H
1 January 2016
—ET-RF¥—A—H

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of acceptable methods of

depreciation and amortisation
B EAFE 16N RBBREERNE38H 2B -
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
BERVBRELENE 1S - [BRPEH W]
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

BEMBHREEAESE - [

[ A3

BTA ]

The directors have confirmed in writing that the Group is in the
process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments and new standards is expected to be in the period
of initial application. The directors anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a potential impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effects until a detailed review has been completed.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the share consolidation which were completed on 22
February 2016 (see notes 26(a)(ii)), the loss per share for the year
ended 31 December 2014 has been restated.

RIrENEHE T A ZEE]

37

1 January 2016
—RE—H—H
1 January 2017
—E—+F—-H—H
1 January 2018
—N\E—H—H

==

EXEEMER  AEEBREFHZEES
Y R T R TR A 9K e R HAR A 2R 2 B2
E EXHMEREAVBHREENSFI
SR %§ﬁ$$l2%ﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁéﬁ
ERZCHARETE  BEEFARRHC
%&m'%hﬁﬁwEZA@ﬁ#ITw
EAT °

e T

HRBOAHER - ZE—NEF_A=-+=
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FIVE-YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LFEUBEEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-HE —T-NFE —T-—=F —T—— T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET FET FET FET
RESULTS E4
Revenue from continuing and 3548 2 B 42 & &
discontinued operations EY A€ 41,268 21,412 14,278 97 7,019
(Loss)/profit before taxation — MFiAT (&8 ) A (26,728) (1,420) 4,505 (5,845) (2,987)
Income tax credit/(expense)  FriSFEHE %, (FI) 763 (735) 358 = (115)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BER),/EF (25,965) (2,155) 4,863 (5,845) (3,102)
Attributable to: AT AL FEL -
Owners of the Company PAYNEIEZZE N (20,131) (1,978) 4,863 (5,845) (3,102)
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR (5,834) (177) - - -
(25,965) (2,155) 4,863 (5,845) (3,102)
Restated Restated Restated Restated
] E-v) Ey]| ]l
(Loss)/earnings per share S (EE), BT
Basis (HK cents) EARCEW) (4.88) (0.64) 1.76 (3.83) (2.03)
Diluted (HK cents) a8 l) N/AREA NATEA NATEA NATERA NATEA
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREAME
Total assets BERE 273,819 168,323 77,523 34,459 5,517
Total liabilities afEms (38,252) (40,355) (21,739) (42,782) (10,070)
235,567 127,968 55,784 (8,323) (4,553)
Total equity attributable to AR TIHEEB A
owners of the Company FE(hHE SR 230,949 116,912 55,784 (8,323) (4,553)
Non-controlling interests FEIEA R 4,618 11,056 - - -
235,567 127,968 55,784 (8,323) (4,553)

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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